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l. Acronyms, Abbrevlolions ond Glossory of Terms

A: Acronyms ond Abbreviolions

NRF Nolionol Reseorch Fund

CEO Chief Execulive Otficer

DG Director Generol

CBK Centrol Bonk of Kenyo

ICPAK lnstilule of Certified Public Accountonls of Kenyo

IPSAS lnternotionol Public Sector Accounting Slondords

MD Monoging Direcior

NT Nolionol Treosury

OCOB Office of the Coniroller of Budgel

OAG office of the Audilor Generol

OSHA Occupotionol Sofety ond Heolth Act of 2007

PFM Public Finonce Monogement

PPE Properly Plont & Equipment

PSASB Public Seclor Accounling Stondords Boord

SAGAs Semi-Autonomous Governmenl Agencies

SC Stole Corporotions

WB World Bonk

VC Vice Choncellor
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2. Key Enllty lnformotion ond Monogemenl

o. Bockgroundlnformollon

Notionol Reseorch Fund (NRF) wos estoblished under PART Vll of the Science,
Technology ond lnnovolion (ST&l) Act (No. 28 of 2013 ond ils offices ore
locoted ot Notionol Commission for Science, Technology ond lnnovotion
Building, Upper Kobete, Noirobi. lts Boord of Trustees wos gozetied on 24th July

2015 followed by ihe inougurotion, on lOth November 2015 ond subsequent
oppoiniment of ihe interim Secretoriol in December 2015. NRF folls under the
Ministry of Educotion, Stote Deportment for Universiiy Educolion ond Reseorch.

At the Ministry level, the Cobinet Secrelory in chorge of the Ministry of
Educoiion is responsible for the generol policy ond strotegic direction of NRF.

b. PrlncipolActivltles

The Act stipuloles thol the objeclive of the Fund sholl be to focililote reseorch
for the odvoncement of Science, Technology ond lnnovotion. The Fund

monies moy be opplied for the following purposes:

i. Aword of controcts, gronts, scholorships or bursories or ony other oword
determined by the Commission to persons or inslitutions.

ii. Provide finonciol support for the ocquisition or estoblishment of reseorch
focilities;

iii. To develop oppropriote humon resources ond reseorch copocity in the
oreos of Science Technology ond lnnovotion

iv. Finoncing reseorch systems in oll sectors ond oll levels of educotion;
v. Funding lhe co-operotion ond shoring of reseorch informotion ond

knowledge, including supporting conferences, workshops, seminors,

meetings ond other symposio;

The funclions of NRt ore to:

i. Mobilise resources for the Kenyo Notionol lnnovotion Agency from lhe
Government, the privote secior, venture copitol. development portners

ond other sources;
ii. Prudently monoge ond invest lhe funds so mobilised
iii. Support lhe developmeni of humon resources ihrough gronts to persons

or reseorch inslitutions or universilies pursuing poslgroduote progroms in
prioritised oreos of Science, Technology ond lnnovotion with priority

being given to morginolised indigenous communities;

VI
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Support the developmeni of reseorch copocities in the notionol priority

oreos of Science, Technology ond lnnovoiion
Allocote funds for reseorch ond promote mulli-disciplinory colloborolion
omong Universities ond reseorch insiiiutions, Evoluote ihe needs, stotus

ond results of reseorch finonced through the Fund

Provide finonciol supporl for the development of reseorch fociliiies by
universities, reseorch institutions ond other bodies identified by the
Commission.
Provide finonciol supporl for porticipotion in internolionol scienlific
octivities lhrough mointoining membership to oppropriote internotionol
science orgonisotions;
Provide finonciol support for colloborotion, co-operotion ond shoring of
reseorch informotion ond knowledge., including supporiing
conferences, workshops, seminors, meetings ond other symposio;

Promote the provision of on informoiion infroslructure linking reseorch
inslitutions to focilitote co-operolion ond shoring of reseorch
informotion ond knowledge.
lniiiote lioison with bodies involved in the protection of intellectuol
property rights;
Compile ond mointoin o notionol dotobose of reseorch ond
innovotion funded by the Fund

Perform the monitoring ond evoluotion of the results ond impoct of the
reseorch ociivities finonced oul of the Fund.

XI

x
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Vision
A world-closs reseorch-funding ogency for competitive knowledge economy

Mlssion
To mobilise resources for reseorch, copocity development, disseminotion of
findings ond mointenonce of inventory for odvoncement of Science,
Technology ond lnnovotion iowords sustoinoble notionol development

Slroteglc Objeclives

The NRF ls gulded by lhe following sholeglc objecllves:

To Mobilise Reseorch Funds

To ensure prudeni utilizotion of reseorch funds
To creote oworeness on Notionol Reseorch Priorities

To strengthen Reseorch ond lnnovotions copocity
To implement Nolionol Reseorch Priorities
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Key Monogemenl

Notionol Reseorch Fund's doyJo-doy monogemeni is under the following key

orgons:
'| . Boord of Trustees

2. Accounting officer who is the Chief Executive Officer
3. Technicol officers ond.
4. Support stoff

c. Flduclory Monogement

The secretoriot services to the Boord ore offered by the officers deployed
from the Ministry. The following officers held office during lhe finonciol yeor
ended 30tn June 2022 ond hod direcl fiduciory responsibility:

s/No. Deslgnolion Nome
I CEO Prof. Dickson Andolo
2 Technicol Officer Mr. Jocob Komworio Njogih
.7 Technicol Officer Dr. Kioko Mwonio Nzuki

4 Technicol Officer Dr. Eliud Teyie Musotsi
( Technicol Officer Ms. Foiih Wokhungu Nomochonjo
6 Legol Ms. Soroh Evo Adhiombo Agong
7 Communicoiions Mr. Titus Kisongou
8 Heod of Finonce Mrs. Rosemory Odeph
9 Procurement Ms. Phylis Wongui Ngure
10 ICT Ms. Louro Odhiombo

ll Records
Officer

Monogement
Ms. Esther Wokere Mugo

12 lnternol Audii Ms. Foith Nyonchoko

d. Fiduciory Oversighl Arrongemenls

The key fiduciory committees ot NRF for ihe yeor ended 30th June 2023 were:

tlnonce Commlllee

The committee is responsible ond instrumentol in:

i. Review Strotegic Plon, Humon Resource Monogement ond
Development Policies, Orgonisoiionol Structure ond sloffing before
opprovol ond odoption by ihe Boord;

vllt
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Audit

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

Ensure NRF comply with the Employment Acl 2007 ond other relevont
slo tu tes/reg u lotio ns;

Review Annuol NRF Budget Proposols for onword opprovol by the Boord;

Ensures occurote lrocking, moniioring ond occountobility of NRF funds;

ond Risk Monogemenl Committee

Review ond opprove ihe oudit chorter where opplicoble ond the
internol oudit work plons;

Review oudit issues roised by both internol ond externol oudilors;
Resolve unsetiled ond unimplemented Public Accounts ond Public

lnvestment Commitlees' recomme n d otions;
Evotuote odequocy of monogement procedures with regord to issues

reloting to risk monogement, control ond governonce;
Review systems estoblished lo ensure sound public finonciol
monogemenl ond internol conlrols, os well os complionce wiih policies,

lows, regulotions, procedures, plons ond ethics; ond

Technlcol Commillee
The committee is responsible;

I . Determine NRF's Mission, Vision, Purpose ond Core Volues;

2. Ensure offeciive. occurote, iimely ond tronsporent disclosure of
pertinenl informotion on NRF's operotions ond performonce;

3. Review on quorierly bosis the oltoinment of lorgels ond objectives
set out in the ogreed performonce torget with lhe Government of
Kenyo;
Review, Monitor ond ensure thot NRF is effectively ond consislently
delivering on its mondote

e. Nollonol Reseorch Fund Heodquorlers
NACOSTI House
Upper Kobete
Noirobi, Kenyo

f. Nollonol Reseorch Fund Contocts
P.O. Box 25036-00200
Telephone: ,25 4) 020- 4403386
e-moil: ceo@nrf .oo.ke
inf o@)nrf .qo.ke
Website: www.nrf o.ke

g. Notlonol Reseorch Fund bonkers
Notionol Bonk of Kenyo
Horombee Avenue,

tx
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P.O BOX 72866M,
Noirobi-Kenyo.

Kenyo Commerciol Bonk
Kiponde House
P.O. Box 4&lOG00lm,
Noirobi-Kenyo.

h. lndependenl Audlton
Otfice the Audilor- Generol,
Anniversory Towers,
Unlvenity Woy,
P.O. Box3@84001@,
NokobF Kenyo.

l. hlnclpol Legol Advlrer
The Attorney Generol,
Stote Low Offfce,
Horombee Avenue,
P.O. Box 4Ol I2-00200,
Noirobi, Kenyo.
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Prof. Roberl Goleru
Dote of Btrth 25/02/ 197 4

Prof . Roberl Goleru is the Vice Choncellor of Rioro

Universiiy. He holds o PhD in Microelectronic Engineering &
Semiconductor Device Physics from the Universiiy of Surrey

in the UK; o Mosters in lhe some field from the University of
Combridge olso in the UK; ond o Bochelor of Science (Firsl

Closs Honors) in Physics from lhe University of Noirobi. He is o Fellow of the
Combridge Commonweolth Trusi, o Senior Member of the lnstitute of Electricol
& Electronlc Engineers (IEEE), o Member of the Educotion Sector Boord ol the
Kenyo Privoie Sector Allionce, omong mony other Boord posiiions.

He previously held senior monogement positions ot the Kenyo Methodist
Universily ond Koborok Universiiy ond hos published widely ond won vorious
owords ond gronts.

Dr. Somuel Kiplongot lkiongo

3:\?:::il;li'j3''lJ:i.' or Reseorch ond poricv ot the
Kenyo Bonkers Associotion, responsible for designing ond
execuiing ihe reseorch ogendo for the bonking industry.
He is on economisl by profession, with over '15 yeors of
experience, l3 of which os on economist ot the Centrol

Bonk of Kenyo. He holds o PhD in Economics from the University of Dor es

Soloom-Tonzonio, o Moster of Arts (Economics) ond Bochelor of Arts

(Economics), bolh from Kenyolto University-Kenyo. He hos received
professionol troining from severol leoding orgonisotions, key omong them the
lnternotionol Monetory Fund (lMF), ihe World Bonk, ond Mocroeconomic ond
Finonciol Monogement lnstituie of Eostern ond Southern Africo (MEFMI).

Currenlly, he is o reseorch fellow of the Africon Economic Reseorch Consortium
(AERC), focusing on finonciol economics, finonciol seclor development ond
resource mobilisotion, hoving published widely in peer-reviewed reseorch
outlels on finonciol morket microstruciure, economic responses io crises,

monelory policy, ond credit morkei onolyses, omong olher oreos.

xllt
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Prof. ltoller O Oyowo, PhD

Dote of Birth: 23108/ 1965

Prof. Wolter O. Oyowo, is currently the Director Generol of the
Notionol Commission for Science, Technology & lnnovotion
(NACOSTI). He is o Professor of Civil Engineering, o holder of o
PhD in Civil Engineering, ond on Execulive MBA. He is o
Registered Professionol Engineer, o Leod Expert-NEMA ond o

reviewer of severol internolionol .journols.

Prof. Oyowo hos served in vorious senior leodership/monogemenl positions
including hoving been the Principol/CEO of Multimedio University College,
Deputy Commission Secretory of lhe Commission for University Educotion
(CUE), pioneering Ag. Principol of the College of Engineering & Technology ot
JKUAT, Director of o Reseorch Centre-SMARTEC oi JKUAT, Choirmon of the
Deportment of Civil Engineering oi.JKUAT, Boord member of severol boords,
omong oihers. He is endowed with vost experience in reseorch/scholorly work,
os evidenced by extensive publicotions in peer reviewed journols, severol
owords ond reseorch gronts, keynoie lectures ond conference popers, ond
supervision of numerous posigroduote students. His reseorch interest is in the
oreo of sustoinoble construction moteriols ond technologies.

Dr. Tonny Omwonso
Dote of Birlh: 01 /O9 / 1977

Dr. Omwonso is cunently the Chief Exeiutive OifiCei ot tne
Kenyo Notionol lnnovotion Agency (KENIA). He is olso the
immediote founder of the C4DLob, University of Noirobi's
lnnovotion hub, where he founded ond led, omong other

progroms, the fomous Noirobi lnnovotion week thot brings numerous
stokeholders shoping Kenyo's lnnovotion Ecosystem. He hos been o foculty
member of the School of Compuling ond informotics, Universiiy of Noirobi ond
is the co-outhor of "Money, Reol Quick: Kenyo's disruptive mobile money
innovotion.
Dr. Omwonso holds o PhD in lnformoiion Sysiems ond hos conducted extensive
reseorch on innovotion in Africo on designing oppropriole ond innovotive
technologies, odoption ond impoct of iechnology omong others.

xlv
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Ms. Edno Aliso
Dote of Binh: 23109 / 1977

Ms. Edno Atiso is on olternote member oppoinled to the
Boord of Notionol Reseorch Fund representing the Cobinet
Secretory for the Notionol Treosury. She holds o Moster of
Arts in Economics, Bochelor of Arts (Economics),
Posigroduoies Diplomo in Educotion, oll from the Universily

of Noirobi. She hos ottended troining in Performonce Monogement in the
Public Sector, Stroiegic Leodership Development. Policy formulotion in the
Public Sector ond lnvesimeni Anolysis ond Plonning. Ms. Atiso is currently o
Deputy Director lnvestment ot the Notionol Treosury. She hos previously served
os on Economisi ot the some Ministry ond os on Assistont Registror of the
University of Noirobi. She hos olso served on the boords of Anti FGM Boord,
Technicol University of Kenyo, South Eostern Kenyo University ond Kenyo Woter
Towers Agency. She is on economist wiih vost experience in economic policy
formulotion ond implementotion ond o member of the Economics Socieiy of
Kenyo

Mr. Ngel wo Mulindo
Dote of Brth: 23/OB/ \967

Ngei wo Mutindo is o professionol teocher, on odminisirofor
ond o coreer public servont. He holds o Bochelor of
Educotion degree, higher diplomo in HRM ond MBA in HRM.
Hos over lhirty yeon in public service ond over fifleen yeors

of port time lecturing in our public ond privote universities. He hos served in
vorious boords in different Minislries like The Notionol Council for Children
Servlces, Counter Trofficking Trust Fund, Child Welfore Society of Kenyo ond
Aquoculture Business Developmenl Progrom. Currently serving ot the Siote
Deportmenl for university educotion ond reseorch os o Senior Deputy
Secrelory os well os the Aliernote PS represeniotive to the KUCCPS Boord.
Hos been o registered member wilh lhe institute of HRM since 2004.

Prof. Dickson M.Andolo, PhD
Dote of Bfih:02104/1979
cEo

Prof. Dickson Andolo, is cunently the Chief Execulive
Officer of the Nolionol Reseorch Fund (NRF). He is on
Associote Professor of Moteriols / lnorgonic Chemisiry,
Multimedio University of Kenyo; PhD in Moteriols

xv
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Chemistry from Binghomton University ond Postdociorol Fellowship
Pennsylvonio Stole University, USA. He is Leod Expert wiih NEMA; DOSH ond
CBRN ond o reviewer of severol locql ond iniernotionol journols.

Prof. Andolo hos served in vorious senior leodership/monogement positions
including hoving been the Director to the Kenyo Nucleor Regulotory Authority
(KNRA), Africon Moteriols Reseorch Society (AMRS) boords, Executive
Committee Member to Africo Crystollogrophic Associotion (AfCA); Choirmon
Chemistry Deportmeni, Multimedio University of Kenyo. Membership 1o vorious
Professionol Associotions including Africon Acodemy of Sciences (AAS), Kenyo
Nolionol Acodemy of Sciences (KNAS); Moleriols Reseorch Society of Kenyo,
Kenyo Chemicol Society (KCS). He is endowed with vosi experience in
reseorch/scholorly work, os evidenced by extensive publicotions in peer-
reviewed journols, severol owords ond reseorch gronls mobilisotion, keynole
lectures ond conference popers, ond supervision of postgroduote students. His

reseorch interests lie in the oreo of nonoscience ond nonotechnology ond its

opplicotions in remediotion, sensors, cotolysis.
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NRF Boord Commlllees

Finonce ond Adminislrotion
Committee

Ms. Glodys Woriroh - Chok
Ms. Edno Atiso
Dr. Floroh Korimi

Technicol Committee Prof. Robert Goteru - Choir
Prof. Wolter Oyowo
Dr. Wohome Rureri operoted up to
511212022
Mr. Ngei Wo Mutindo operoted W.E.F

5t12t2022
Resource Mobilizotion ond
lnlernotionol Relotions
Committee

Dr. Floroh Korimi - Choir
Ms. Glodys Workoh
Dr. Somuel K. Tiriongo

Audit ond Risk Monogement
Commiitee

Dr. Somuel K. Tiriongo- Choir
Ms. Edno Atiso
Dr. Tonny Omwonso

xvll



a

National Research Fund
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2023. m'ffi
4. Key Monogement
NRF is governed by ihe Boord of Truslees. The doily operotions ore monoged
by o secretoriot comprising of the Chief Execulive Officer, five (5) deployed
stoff, four (4) Technicol officers ond one (1) support stoff deployed by the
Minislry of Educotion. Stoie Deportment of Higher Educotion ond Reseorch.
The rest of the fiduciory stoff members were employed during the yeor. The
Fund hos mode efforts to become fully operotionol ond hos developed
severol Policy instruments to guide ils doyJo-doy operotions. The Fund
developed on HR operotions monuol ond ihe some hos olreody been
opproved by the Stote Corporotions Advisory Committee (SCAC).

The key monogement personnel who held office during the period ended
30f h June, 2023 ond who hod direct fiduciory responsibiliiy were-

Prol'. Dickstln lr.t. turdnln.
PhD

CAft;r{sacarirv Oflcer

DL. Eliud Trf ie lrlusotsi

Teeh eal Qtllcer ht
charsc ql Rescarch Gtoula,

PhD. Kislahrli Liugrristics
Liternnrre .t t'ulnrlnl
Snrdirs

ittr'. Jaeob Kours'rria Niagilr
Techulcal Qtlleer lu
Charye efResouree
.lro0rli!(aroa

tU

Dr. Kio\o Narki Mtunuia

lochulcal Otfieor la
Charye al Plaantug and
S'ror.&'

tI

E ,
lL

:f,.
G!'L-

( P.{ Rosrnrory Odeph

Prhrc lpa I ..1 c c o t, tar, I h,
Charge of Flaowo aud
.:leco&rarr

irls. Fnith \\:oNruugu
NnnlnchEl\io

Teehulael O,lflcu la
ckarye ql Plaualag aad
Colilf,llaaae
\laster of Eduention iu
Spet'inl Neetls Erlucntiou

.*5

I

L

( P.,\. BB.\t
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Phylis Waugui

HcadqlProcurrtuat

MSc Procuruncnl nud

logistics

Lrum Odhiaubo

IlcodqIICTdepa e$t

BSc in Applied Plrysiu nnd

Computu St'icuce
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5. Cholrmon's Slolemenl
Reseorch, Science, Technology ond lnnovoiion (RST&l) excellence is

poromounl to weolth creolion ond growth of ony Notion. The core mondote
of Notionol Reseorch Fund (NRF) is to mobilize reseorch resources to support
the developmeni of reseorch copocity through Humon resource, institutionol
reseorch infrostructure ond innovotions. ln this regord, the Government hos

mode significont efforls to increose investment in reseorch ond innovoiion 1o

promoie ihe productivity of new knowledge ond technologies in the Notionol
lnnovotion System. During the yeor under review, NRF delivered on the
following torgels:

r Mobilizotion of gronts from Development Poriners to o tune of KES

42,664,266.45
o Funding of vorious reseorch progrommes;
o Estoblished portnershipsondcolloborotions;
o Creoled oworeness of NRF by convening on inleroctive forum io

sensitise stokeholders;
o Conducted o Notionol Reseorch ond Development survey on Reseorch

ond Development (R&D)

o Conducted documeniories of some of the funded Reseorch projects.
o Development of on online reseorch gront monogemeni system
o Tree Growing octivity ot Noirobi University (Kobete), Kwole ond mony

others. The Fund in colloborotion with the Kenyo Forest Service (KFS),

undertook o CSR octivity on tree plonting. Up to 2070 tree seedlings were
plonted, which included locol tree species, other fruit trees. The

seedlings sholl be nurtured by students in vorious inslitutions'. The
principol representotives from the fund ond oiher stokeholders
reiteroted the importonce of plonting ond nurturing trees to increose
Kenyo's forest cover, os well os loking core of trees to ensure
environmenlol sustoinobility.

ln oddition, the Boord hos developed the following policies ond guidelines to
guide the Boord ond NRF operotions:

'l . Humon Resource instruments;
2. The Boord Monuol
3. The Boord Chorter
4. Service Chorter
5. Resource mobilizoiion ond lnvestment Strotegy
6. Finonce Policy ond Procedures monuol
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The journey in reolizotion of o well invested Reseorch ond lnnovotion conlinues.
This is in londem with Science, Technology ond lnnovotion Strotegy for Africo's
(STISA-2024) mission of occeleroiing Africo's tronsition io on innovotion-led,
knowledge-bosed economy where eoch Member Stote of which Kenyo is o
signolory, is encouroged 1o loke concrete oclions to ollocote ot leosl l% of
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) to R&D. This will ensure the ownership ond
responsibilily towords the continent's own developmeniol poth.

The efforl by the Government to increose the ollocotion io reseorch os

provided by the Science, Technology ond lnnovotions Acl of 2013, where NRF

is tosked to mobilize the funds to o tune of 2% (opproximotely KES 2008) of the
country's GDP is promising. Attoinment of this gool will enhonce investmenl in

creotion of new knowledge (Reseorch) thot contributes to the overoll Notionol
Development ogendo.

Among the chollenges foced by NRF in operotions ond delivery of its mondote
during 2022-2023 Finonciol Yeor (FY) include;

The lengthy processes involved in initiotion of colloboroiive progrommes

with developmenl porlners hove offected ihe resource mobilizotion. This

poses o threot of losing out potentiol portners.

2. The deloy in exchequer releoses offecled the operotions of the Fund lo
some extent by deloying Project lmplemenlotion os Scheduled

3. Scoling down of the onnuol budgei offecled implemeniotion of the on-
going progrommes.

To miligote the oforementioned chollenges, lhe Boord endeovours to engoge
the relevonl outhorities involved in issuonce of the necessory opprovols to
consider fost lrocking the focilitotion of resource mobilizotion reloted
progrommes. ln oddition lo this, engogement with vorious gronting

slokeholders is on course.

?)o---
Prof Rolemo Mlchleko, EBS.

Choirmon
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6. Reporl of lhe Chlef Execulive Ofllcer
ln line with ihe Notionol Reseorch Fund's (NRF) mondote to focililole reseorch
for the odvoncement of Science, Technology ond lnnovotion for Notionol
Development, NRF hos been supporting vorious reseorch projecis ond
reseorch focilities.

During the yeor under evoluoiion, NRF received o totol Kshs 323,037,923

budgeted by ihe Government. ln the yeor, over 687" hos been committed io
reseorch progrommes in support of the Government policy priority of BETA

Agendo. The funded progrommes included the on-going progrommes (the
initioted ond on-going counterporl funding). All the biloierol progroms ore
bosed on o co-finoncing model where eoch portner funds its component ond
they both shore the knowledge emonoting from such o progromme. During

the yeor under review, NRF's core mondote octivities were os tobuloled
below.

Reseorch Gronls progrom
c osls

2022/2023

PhD 729,67 5
MMC'I 26,744,639.00
MMC 2 9,599.508.30
Newlon Utofiti 2,334,295
DAAD 127 ,t 57 ,250
EJP(Soil) 2,500,000
HEPWEK 21 ,O21 ,283
FOSC 20,064,672.O0
Support for conferences 10.587.000
PHC Pomo.io 8,722,191

On going Reseorch Gronts-Poyoble
(British Council)

r,507.750.00

On going Reseorch gronts-Poyobles
{IDRC)

r 8,988,5r 7.45

Accruol Poid 2,652,860

Chollenges / Mitigote/Successes
l. Deloy in the issuonce of exchequer offected lhe Orgonizotion by not

disbursing the funds to projech in due time.

2. The fund monoged to recruil Sioff during the finonciol yeor under review
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To mitigote the oforementioned chollenges of finonces, the resource

mobilisolion strotegy wos developed io enhonce resource mobilisotion

lowords ochieving BETA ogendo.

The Resource Mobilizotion Slrotegy wos o good exomple of iniensive ond

consideroble representotions leoding to o fovouroble outcome os the fund

monoged to receive KSh.42 from vorious donors compored to Ksh.27,308,159

from lost finonciol yeor. Likewise, NRF is in consultotion with the Governmenl lo

increose its budgel from the current 323m to B00m lo enoble the fund meet ils

Constitutionol mondote.

I sincerely thonk our stokeholders ond portners for their continued support ond

colloborotion throughout the finonciol yeor. ln porticulor, I commend ihe

vorious donors for the finonciol suppod they occorded the fund.

Finolly, I ocknowledge the Choirperson, Members of the boord ond Secretoriot

stoff for their collective effort, dedicotion, commitment ond relionce in driving

NRF tow ds meeting iis conslilutionol mondote.

Prof. Dlckson M. Andolo.
CEO, Nolionol Reseorch Fund
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7. Slotemenl of Performonce Agolnsl Predelermlned Oblectlves for Fy

2022/2023

The Notionol Reseorch Fund strotegic obiectives drown from the
Orgonizolion's Strolegic Plon for the FY 2022- FY 2023 were to:

1. Mobilize Reseorch Funds

2. Monoge Reseorch Funds

3. Develop Copocity ond copobililies of reseorch institutions
4. Promote Reseorch ond fociliiote lnnovotions

The onnuol business plons for the Notionol Reseorch Fund were bosed on the
obove 4 Specific objectives. Assessment of the Boord's performonce ogoinst
its onnuol work plon is done on o quorterly bosis. The Notionol Reseorch Fund

ochieved its performonce torgeis sel for the FY 2022-2023 os shown below:
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Provided reseorch
gronls in priority oreos.

Reseorch ond
lnnovoiions in slrotegic
oreos enhoncedBEIA Agendo

Promolion of reseorch
ond focililolion of
innovolions

Funding reseorchers to
focililote innovotions under ihe
BETA ogendo ol Notionol level

All indicotors set to
enhonce resource
mobilisotion including
publishing of
inslitulionol newslelier,
improvement of NRF

website oullook, ond
Development ond
oiring of reseorch
documenlories online
ochieved

Mobilised lhrough
vorious Donors Ksh.

42,664,266.45 through
the NRF Resource
Mobilizolion ond
lnvestmenl Strotegy.

Enhonce corporote visibility

ond bronding for resource
mobilizotion by publishing of
inslilutionol newsleller, improve
NRF websile oullook 1o moke it

interoctive Develop ond oir
reseorch documentories online

Resource
Mobilizolion ond
lnveslmenl
Strotegy

To mobilise resources
ond underloke
inveslments through o
well-orliculoted
strotegy lo ochieve
the Fund objeclives

A Desktop review of
funded proiecls due
for M&E undertoken;

Site visils lo vorious
prolecls done:

Requesls mode lo
beneficiories for
reseorch reporl briefs
from NRF beneficiories

Summory Monitoring ond
evoluolion report of
funded proiecls

Desktop review of proiecls due
for M&E Sile visil to vorious
proiects:Monilor ond evoluole

funded projecls

Moniloring ond
evoluolion of
funded proiects
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8. Corporole Governonce Stolemenl
Boord Chorler

The Boord Chorter is criticol io ihe Fund's governonce fromework, ond offers

guidonce on motters including but not limiled to the following; The seporotion

of the roles, functions, responsibilities ond powers of the Boord ond its individuol

members; Powers delegoied to lhe Boord commitlees; Moiters reserved for

finol decision-moking ond opprovol by the Boord; Policies ond proctices of the

Fund on motiers of corporote governonce ond conflict of interest, conduct of

Boord ond Boord commiltee meetings; oppointment, induction, ongoing

troining ond performonce evoluoiion of lhe Boord ond ils committees.

The Chorler is not o substitute or o replocement of ony lows ond regulotions

thot govern the running of ihe Boord.

Boord Slze, Composilion, Appolnlmenl ond Successlon Plon

The Fund sholl be monoged by o Boord of Trustees which sholl consist of nine

members to be oppointed by the Cobinet Secretory os follows-

o) A choirperson, being o person wiih knowledge ond experience in

motlers reloled to finonce, investmenl ond fundroising;

b) The Principol Secrelory in the Ministry responsible for finonce;

c) The Principol Secretory in the Ministry responsible for science ond

technology; No. 28 of 2013 Science, Technology ond lnnovotion [Rev.

20141 flssue 3l S4A - 20

d) One person nominoted by the Kenyo Privote Sector Allionce;

e) Two persons wiih knowledge ond experience in finonce ond investment

nominoted by the Kenyo Bonkers Associotion;

f) One person from o body with functions similor to those of ihe Fund in

Kenyo;

g) The Direcior of the Kenyo lnnovotion Agency; ond
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h) The Secreiory to the Commission.

For purposes of oppointing the members of the Boord of ihe Trustees refened

to under subsections (4)(o), (d), (e) ond (f), the Cobinet Secretory sholl oppoint

o selection ponel in the monner sel out under section 5(B), which sholl compile

through on open ond competitive process o shortlist of not more thon nine

nomes

The selection ponel sholl compile the shortlist ofter following o konsporent ond

competitive nominotion process.

The Boord hos four (4) commiltees which ore:

Finonce ond Administrotion Commitiee,

Technicol Commiitee,

Resource Mobilizotion ond lnternotionol Relotions Committee ond

Audit ond Risk Monogement Commitlee.

Eoch Commitiee hos formol ond opproved lerms of reference. The Boord

periodicolly reviews the terms of reference for eoch of these committees to

ensure they ore in line with current legislotion ond best prociice. The

Commiilees ore provided with oll necessory resources to enoble them to

undertoke their duties effectively.

The Choirperson ond Members of the Boord will hold office for o term not

exceeding four yeors ond sholl be eligible for reoppoiniment for one further

lerm.
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Roles ond Funcllons of the Boord

The Boord of Trustees sholl-

(o) Mobilise resources for the Kenyo Notionol lnnovotion Agency from the

Government, the privote seclor, venture copitol, development portners ond

other sources;

(b) Prudently monoge ond invesi the funds so mobilised;

(c) Support the development of humon resources through gronts to persons

or reseorch institutions or universities pursuing postgroduote progroms in

prioritised oreos of science, technology ond innovoiion wiih priority being

given io morginolised indigenous communities;

(d) Support the development of reseorch copocities in the notionol priority

oreos of science, lechnology ond innovotion;

(e) Allocote funds for reseorch ond promoie multi-disciplinory colloborotion

omong Universities ond reseorch institutions, including the innovotion delivery

ogencies estoblished under section 29;

(f) Evoluole the needs, stotus ond results of reseorch finonced lhrough the

Fund;

(g) Provide finonciol support for ihe development of reseorch focilities by

universilies, reseorch institutions ond oiher bodies identified by the Commission;

(h) Provide finonciol supporl for porticipotion in internolionol scientific octivities

through moinloining membership 10 oppropriote inlernolionol science

orgonisotions;

(i) Provide finonciol support for colloborotion, co-operotion ond shoring of

reseorch informotion ond knowledge, including supporting conferences.

workshops, seminors, meelings ond other symposio;
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U) Promote the provision of on informotion infrostructure linking reseorch

institutions to focilitote co-operotion ond shoring of reseorch informotion ond

knowledge;

(k) lniiiote lioison with bodies involved in the proteclion of inlellectuol property

rights;

The Boord conducted its meelings os shown in lhe toble below. There wos one

regulor boord meeting ond four speciol boord meetings during the yeor under

evoluoiion becouse the previous boord's lenure ended on 71h July 2022.

Meelings Regulol Speciol
Full Boord 4 6

Finonce ond
Committee

Administrotion
4

Technicol Commitlee 4

Audit Committee 4

Ad-hoc commiltee
Boord Troining
Resource Mobil izotion 4

Boord Retreot 2

Audit Commiiiee Troining

Tolol 25 6

lnduclion ond Trolning

Newly oppointed Boord members will be token through on induction

progromme to fomiliorise themselves with their responsibilities os Boord

members, the principles of corporote governonce ond Boord proctices. The

induction progromme will olso provide ihe Boord member with on orientotion

of the Fund, Strotegic Plon, finonciol stotus ond policies, risk monogement,

complionce progrommes ond the Code of Conducl ond Ethics. The Boord

sholl olso ensure lhot o Compelency Needs Assessmenl is corried oui

periodicolly for Boord members ond on onnuol Boord development plon

prepored to oddress the gops identified.
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Boord ond Member Performonce ond Evoluollon

During the yeor, the Boord conducted o sellevoluotion os provided for in low

under the guidonce of offlciols from the Stoie Corporotions Advisory

Commiitee (SCAC). The evoluolion provided members with on opportunity lo

intenogote their performonce ond point out issues thot require the ottention of

both individuol members ond the Fund os o whole.

Confllcl ol lnleresl

A conflict of interest moy orise where o Boord member or close fomily member

hos privoie interests thot could improperly influence the performonce of the

Boord member's officiol duties ond responsibililies. Conflict moy olso orise

where o Boord member uses lhe Fund's property for personol profit. Boord

members sholl be required to ovoid conflici of interest ond distonce

themselves from ony conflicl of interest in ony motter thot relotes to the Fund.

However, o Boord member who identifies on oreo of conflict sholl be required

to disclose ony octuol, opporeni or potentiol conflict of interest to the Boord.

ln so reporting, ihe Boord member sholl be required to provlde oll relevont

informotion, including informotion which perloins to immediote fomily

members reloting io the oreo of conflict. When declored, the member sholl

obstoin from decisions where the conflict exists. The Boord Secretory sholl

mointoin o record of conflicts of inierest declored, for occounlobiliiy purposes

ond os o principle of good proctice, ot every Boord meeting. l0 | Poge When

circumstonces chonge, oll Boord members sholl in good foith disclose to the

Boord for recording purposes, ony other business or interest likely io creote o

polentiol conflict of interesi

Boord Remunerotlon

The Choirmon ond the Boord members sholl receive remunerotion ond

benefits in occordonce with the prevoiling legislotive provisions ond/or

guidonce from the Stoie Corporotion Advisory Committee (SCAC).

\O'IURFmffi
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Elhlcs ond conducl os well os governonce oudit

Boord members hove o duty to oct ethicolly ol oll limes ond in occordonce

with this Chorter, to oct honestly in line wilh their fiduciory duty ond in the best

interests of the Fund. The Boord sholl therefore promote ethicol conduct ond

sonction misconduct. Towords this end. the Boord sholl develop ond odopt o

Code of Conduct ond Eihics, Whistle blowing policy, Confideniiolity policy,

Conflict of lnterest policy ond Gifts policy; ond ensure thoi oll Boord members

subscribe to the some. The Boord sholl review the Code ond policies os

necessory.

9. Monogemenl Dlscussion And Anolysis

9.1 Fund's Princlpol Aclivllies

As provided in lhe ST&l Act of 2013 Section 33, lhe objecl of the Fund sholl be
to focililote reseorch for the odvoncement of science, technology ond
innovotion. Therefore. NRF is obliged to;

i). Aword of conirocts, gronts, scholorships or bursories or ony other oword
deiermined by the Commission io persons or insiitutions;

ii). Provide finonciol support for lhe ocquisition or estoblishment of reseorch
focilities;

iii). Develop oppropriote humon resources ond reseorch copocity in the
oreos of science technology ond innovotion

iv). Finonce reseorch systems in oll sectors ond oll levels of educotion;
v). Fund the cooperotion ond shoring of reseorch informotion ond

knowledge, including supporting conferences, workshops, seminors.

meetings ond other symposio;

Due to o deloy in exchequer releose NRF could not implement some of its core
mondole progrommes os plonned within ihe quorters.

Resulls

The results of the NRF for the yeor ended 30 .June, 2023 ore set out os from poge
I to 37. The Boord of Trustees submit their report togelher with ihe oudited
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finonciol stolements for the yeor ended June 30,2023, which shows the stote
of NRF's offoirs os shown below:

9.2 Approved Budgel Anolysis

Personnel Emolumenls:

2022-23 Budget Ksh 14.176,109
2022-21 Budgel: Ksh 2,5BB,B3B

Percentoge lncreose: 445%

The budget ollocotion for personnel emoluments hos seen o significonl
increose of opproximotely 445% from the previous fiscol yeor. This substontiol
rise wos os o result of NRF stroteglc focus on enhoncing the NRF's workforce
ond copobilities. This wos done to occommodote odditionol responsibiliiies,
improve operotionol efficiency, ond possibly supporl speciolised roles within
the orgonisotion. As NRF oims to mobilize, ollocote, ond monoge finonciol
resources for on effective notionol innovotion system, this increosed ollocotion
reflecls our commitment to susloining ond exponding its operotionol leom to
meet growing demonds.

Amounl ln Ksh

|,587,27 | 445%| 4.17 6,109 2,588,838

66,262,344 24,543,308 36%90,805,652

t1 ,166,599 10,148,272 1.018,327 9%

249,ss3,829 225,685,792 23,868,O37 lt/o

365,702.189 304,685,246 6r,0r 6.943 17%

9 -tuil:
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for lhe eor ended 30 June 2023

Admlnlslrolion & Operoling Cost

2022-23 Budgel: Ksh 90,805,652

2022-21 Budgel: Ksh 66,262,344
Percentoge lncreose: 36%

The ollocotion for odminislrotion ond operoling costs wos increosed by 36%

compored to the previous fiscol yeor. This increose wos due to the NRF's

dedicoiion to strengthening its operotionol foundotion following recruilment.
The higher budget wos directed toword improving infrostructure, lechnology,
ond resources necessory to effectively monoge the fund's octivities. This

ollocotion oligns with the NRF's function of prudenily monoging ond investing

funds while olso promoling on informotion infrostructure ond efficient
coordinotion of reseorch efforis.

Boord Expenses:

2022-23 Budgel: Ksh 11.155,599

2022-21 Budget: Ksh 10.148,272

Percentoge lncreose:9%
The budgei ollocotion for boord expenses reflecis o modest increose of 9%

from the previous fiscol yeor due to inflotion. This consislent invesiment in

boord-reloted expenses underscores the NRF's commilment lo mointoining
effective governonce ond oversight mechonisms. The boord ploys o cruciol
role in decision-moking ond strotegic direclion, ensuring thot the fund's

resources ore ollocoted in olignment with its mondote.

Reseorch Progroms Gronls:

2022- 23 Bud gel: Ksh 249, 5 53,829

2022-21 Budgel: Ksh 225, 685,7 92

Percenioge lncreose: I l%

The budget ollocotion for reseorch progroms gronts hos increosed by obout
1l% from ihe previous fiscol yeor. This substontiol ollocolion, which constitutes
o significont portion of the NRF's budget, directiy oligns with iis core mondote
ond functions. The continued emphosis on funding reseorch octivilies
demonstrotes the NRF's commitment to promoting innovotion ond
colloborotion ocross vorious fields of science ond technology. This ollocotion
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supports multi-disciplinory reseorch, copocity building, ond colloborotion,
foslering on effective nolionol innovotion syslem lhol contributes to the
country's economic growth.

Tolol Budgel lncreose:
2022-23 Budget: Ksh 365,702.1 89

2022-21 Budget: Ksh 304.685,246

Percentoge lncreose: 177"

The totol budget hos experienced o noioble increose of obout l7% compored
to the previous fiscol yeor. This overoll growth in budget ollocotion reflects NRF's

growing dedicotion to its mondote ond functions. ll signifies our recognition of
the imporlonce of reseorch, innovotion, ond colloborotion in driving Kenyo's

economic development. The increosed investment ocross vorious budget
cotegories is our strotegic commitment to fostering on effective notionol
innovotion syslem thot generoles knowledge ond innovotions for the benefit
of our country's growing economy.
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ln Ihe 2022-23 budget, significonJ budget increoses ore observed ocross

different oreos. Personnel emoluments sow o substontiol rise of 445%, dtiven by
our focus on enhoncing the NRFs workforce ond copobilities. Administrotion
ond operoting costs rose by 367" to strengthen infrostructure ond resources.

Boord expenses increosed by 9%, moinioining effective governonce. Reseorch
progrom gronts were up 1l%, demonstroting commilment to innovotion.
Overoll, the totol budget increosed by 177", reflecting NRF's dedicotion to
fostering o robust notionol innovotion system for Kenyo's economic growth.

Revenue Anolysls

NRF's income sources include government tronsfers ond other forms of
revenue. ln lhe fiscol yeor 2022-23, it received o tronsfer of Ksh 323,037,923 from
government entiiy, consistent with the previous yeor. This recurring tronsfer

supports the fund's octivities. Additionolly, NRF received Ksh 42,664,265.45 in
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other income, indicoting o significont increose compored to Ksh 27,308,1 59.@

in the previous yeor. This comprises vorious revenue streoms such os donotions,
or project-reloted income. Notobly, in2021-22, o substontiol Ksh 27,308,159.00

of "other income" wos received, due to mobilizotion of funds from donors.

Revenue Analvsis
-{.h.' ,: ,r':t rj . ; r,t,ri

:,.: lj tr.:.r,rr r :.,,,r'!:
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9.3 Expenses onolysls

Per3onol Emolumenls:
202322:. Ksh I 4, I 76, I 09.20
2022-21 : Ksh 2,588,838.00

N21-2O: No doto provided
The substontiol increose in personol emoluments irom 2022-21 to 2023-22 4477o

indicotes o significont rise in workforce-reloted expenses. This is ottributed to
exponded personnel oligning with NRF's operotionol growth.

Use of Goods ond Servlces:
2o2322: Ksh 7 3,229, 6 47 .25

2022-21 : Ksh 63, 770,680.00

2f.21 -20: Ksh 65,681,542.00
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A sieody increose in the use of goods ond services expenses from 202l' -20 to
2023-22 was due to operotionol exponsion ond ongoing needs' lnvesimenis

in technology, focilities, ond resources due to recruitment hove conlributed
io this rise.

Boord Expenses:

2023-22: Ksh | 0,69 6,9 29. 40

2022-21: Ksh 10, I 48,272.00

2021 -20: Ksh 8, 4 4 5,24 4.00

There wos consislent increose in boord expenses over the three yeors which
underscores NRF's commiiment to effective governonce. The rise wos due to
continued investments in boord+eloted octivities, oligning with the NRF's

mondote.

Reseorch Progroms Gronls:

202322'. Ksh 229, 450,5 I 3.00

2022-21 : Ksh 30 1,938,477.00

202l, -20: Ksh 254,369, 475.00

The decreose in reseorch progroms gronts from 2022-21 to 202!22 wos due
to slight odjustments in funding focus. This reduction is os o result lo deloy in

exchequer releoses thot offected in releosing on time the funds to reseorch
entities.
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Summory:
Over the yeors our octuol expenses reveol NRFs operotionol dynomics. The

surge in personol emoluments wos due to workforce growth, while increosing
goods ond services expenses highlight operotionol enhoncements. Elevoled
boord expenses signify governonce emphosis, ond reseorch gront fluctuotions
suggest strotegic shifts. Overoll, these expenses reflecl NRF's efforts to odopt,
expond, ond fulfil iis mondote effectively, os evidenced by chonges in
ollocotions qcross cotegories over the specified three-yeor period.
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9.4 Anolysis of Reseorch Gronts funded ond monilored by seclor.

Research Grants funded and monitored by
sector
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10. Environmenlol ond Suslolnoblllty Reporting

Susloinoblllty Slrotegy ond Profile of lhe Nolionol Reseorch Fund (NRF)

With o strotegic focus on professionolism, integrity, equity, teomwork,
occouniobiliiy, ond responsiveness, NRF strives to ochieve its objeciives while
olso contributing io sustoinobility ocross vorious dimensions. This reporl
exomines NRF's sustoinobility efforts, ochievemenls, ond chollenges within its
core operoiionol oreos.

l) Susloinobllity Slrolegy ond Profile

NRF's sustoinobility efforts ore underpinned by o commitment to effective
resource uiilizotion, risk monogemenl, ond business coniinuity. The

orgonisotion ocknowledges the imporlonce of deploying resources efficiently
io fulfil its mondotes while olso implemeniing robusl risk monogement
progroms. These initiotives ensure thot senior monogemeni mointoins oversight
ond oddresses potentiol risks, enhoncing ihe Fund's sustoinobility.

ll) Envlronmenlol performonce

NRF's environmentol performonce is reflected in its shift toword digitol
processes, reducing poper-bosed workflows, ond implementing sustoinoble
proctices. The odoption of on intronet system significontly minimise poper
usoge, while policies promoling responsible electronic wosie disposol, woier
dispenser shoring, ond the preference for digitol documents contribute to the
orgonisotion's environmentol sustoinobility. Furthermore, proctices like printing
on both sides of poper documents ond just-in-time stock replenishmenl exhibit
NRF's dedicolion io resource conservolion.

lii) Employee Welfore

NRF's commitmenl lo employee welfore is evident through its HR policy oligned
wilh Public Service Volues ond Principles os provided in Article 232 ot the
Constitution. Stoff members benefit from o foir performonce opproisol system,
which identifies oreos for improvement ond troining opportuniiies.NRF's
investment in copocity-building through troining further underscores iis

dedicotion io employee developmeni.

xl



Nollonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonclol Slotements ffi, \O,,YRF

,S".-.
tor the eor ended 30 June 2023

lv) Corporote Sociol Responslbility/Community Engogements

lnlroduclion: The Nolionol Reseorch Fund {NRF) is deeply committed 10

contribuling positively to sociely through vorious Corporote Sociol

Responsibility (CSR) iniiiotives ond communily engogemeni progroms. These

efforts olign with NRF's mission lo ''To mobilise resources for reseorch, copocily

development, disseminotion of findings, ond moinienonce of inventory for

the odvoncement of Science, Technology, ond lnnovoiion towords

sustoinoble notionol development."

The following report highlights the key CSR octivities corried out by NRF in the
yeor ended June 2023, olong wilh their impoct on society.

Tree Plonllng ond Environmenlol Conservotion: The Fund Stoff demonstroted its

commitment to environmentol preservotion by octively porticipoting in iree
plonting initiolives within the NRF environs. This iniliotive oimed ot contribuling
1o forest conservotlon ond roising oworeness obout the importonce of
environmentol sustoinobiliiy. The Government led by H.E Presideni Ruto

initioted plonting of 15 billion trees by 2032, o move oimed ot: reducing
greenhouse emissions, stopping ond reversing deforestotion ond, restoring 5.1

million hectores of deforested ond degroded londscopes ihrough the Africon

Londscope Restorolion lnitiolive which wos lounched on 22nd December
2022. Consequently, by toking o prooclive role in environmenlol conservotion,
NRF showcosed its dedicotion to o greener ond heolthier future for the
community ond the plonet.

lmpocl on Sociely: The CSR octivities conducted by NRF in ihe yeor ended
June 2023, hove hod o significont impoct on society. The tree plonting efforls

ond commitment to environmentol conservotion hove promoied o
sustoinoble ond greener environment.

Concluslon: The Fund remoins steodfost in its commitment to Corporote Sociol

Responsibiliiy ond Community Engogement. Through o comprehensive
sustoinobility stroiegy thot encomposses vorious pillors, including Reseorch,

environmenlol conservotion, employee welfore, ond ethicol proctices, NRF

continues to contribute posiiively to Kenyo's Reseorch ond developmentol
londscope. Despite chollenges, NRF's ochievements underscore its role os o
Funding body ond o driving force in shoping o beiter future for the country.
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v) Morkelploce Proctices

NRF's commitmenl to responsible competition proctices is reflecled in iis

proociive meosures to comboi bribery ond corrupiion. The NRF's

responsiveness to the politicol environment ond its role in oddressing legol
fromework omendmenis demonslrote its commitment to ethicol proctices.
Ensuring foirness in procuremenl through open odvertisement, importiol
evoluotion criterio, ond meosures to prevent conuption or conflicts of inlerest
exemplify NRF's elhicol ond lronsporenl morket proctices.

o) Responslble competlllon proctice

. The Fund hos committed io uunderioke o Bribery ond Corruption
Risk Assessmeni, develop o Conuplion Risk Mitigotion Plon,
implement meosures emonoting from the plon, Monitor, evoluole
ond review effectiveness of meosures pul in ploce ond submit
quorterly reports io EACC in the prescribed formot io EACC;

o The Commission is responsive to the politicol environment,
especiolly on issues offecting omendments to the legol
fromework. Where issues hove been roised in Porlioment, ihe
Fund lhrough the Ministry of Educotion responds to the soid
issues.

o The Fund upholds foir competiiion by odvertlsing for oll ihe
procurement opportunities to the prequolified suppliers if using
RFQs ond on its website ond Notionol Treosury Suppliers Portol for
open tenders. This gives on opporlunily for oll eligible bidders to
porticipoie.

. NRF ensures ihot specificolions for goods, works ond services ore
not toilor mode to ony one produci using brond nomes.

. All the detoils informotion from the bidders ore hondled with
confidenliolity in respecl of the competitors rights.

o Evoluolion criterio is olwoys indicoted in the bid document 1o

enhonce foirness ond the lender evoluotion is in complionce
with ihe evoluotion criterio.

. All bidders sign the form committing not to involve in ony
conuption os well os decloring their conflict of interest if ony.

b) Responslble supply choin ond supplier relolions

o NRF honours oll the ierms of the coniroct wilh oll bidders inclusive
of the terms of poyment. This is done through on inclusive
inspection ond occeplonce process where both the controctor
ond the NRF lnspection Commiitee ore involved.

. Suppliers ore olso encouroged to communicote to the Fund in
writing on ony deviotions from the terms of conlrocl ond ony

\O'IYRF
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proposed modificotions. Negotiolion meetings ore held with the
Suppliers where necessory.

c) Responslble morketlng ond odverlisement

o The efforts to mointoin elhicol morketing proctices within the Fund
ond beyond ore outlined os follows:

. Ensure thot oll promoiionol moleriols disseminoled to the public
ore occurole ond truthful;

. Ensure thot oll odverts, communicotion odvisories ore opproved
by the CEO before they ore releosed to externol medio or Public;

o Ensure morkeling moteriols do not contoin ony folse or misleoding
informotion;

. Ensure promotionol moteriols ore nol designed to prey on the feors
or insecurities of potentiol reseorchers.

. Ensure promotionol moieriols do noi use longuoge thot is offensive
or discriminotory;

o Children ore noi used on promoiionol moteriols.
r Morkeiing moteriols should not be used to promote unheolthy or

dongerous behoviours or to promote illegol octiviiies.

Ensuring thot the controctor/suppliers engoged ore licensed by the
relevoni Governmenl entities such os NCA, Food ond Poisons Boord,
ICTA omong others.
During inspection, the Commission's lnspeciion ond Acceptonce
Committee oppointed by the CEO which comprises of the User

deportment verifies supplier's complionce io the controct terms
including certificoiion of goods by lhe relevont Government entities
such os KEBS.

(d) Product Slewordship
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I I . Report of Direclors
The Directors submii their report logeiher with the oudited finonciol stotements

for the yeor ended June 30, 2023, which show ihe stote of the Notionol

Reseorch Fund's offoirs.

i) Prlncipol oclivities

The principol ociivilies of Notionol Reseorch Fund ore:

o Awording of controcls, gronts, scholorships, bursories. or ony other

oword determined by the Commission to persons or institulions.

o Providing finonciol support for the ocquisiiion or estoblishment of

reseorch focilities

o Developing oppropriote humon resources ond reseorch copocity in the

oreos of Science Technology ond lnnovotion

. Funding the co-operotion ond shoring of reseorch informotion ond

knowledge, including supporting conferences, workshops, seminors,

meeiings, ond other symposio

ii) Resulls

The results of the Fund for the yeor ended June 30,2023, ore set out on poge

xxix to xxxv.

iiD Dlreclors

The members of lhe Boqrd of Trustees who served during the yeor ore shown
on poge x to xv. During the yeor under review the boord wos composed of
lhe Choirmon ond Nine (9) boord members. The boord hos five committees,
ond eoch boord member is o member of the vorious commiltees formed
during lhe yeor.

iv) Surplus remlssion

ln occordonce with Regulotion 219 (2) of ihe Public Finonciol Monogement

(Notionol Governmeni) Regulotions, regulotory enliiies sholl remii inio
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Consolidoted Fund, ninety per cenium of its surplus funds reported in the

oudited finonciol stotements ofier the end of eoch finonciol yeor.

NRF mode o surplus ol 9,877,733 during the yeor FY 2023 ond hence no

remittonce io the Consolidoted Fund os lhe surplus wos from portners ond the

sponsored projects were pending owoiting progress reporis.

v) Auditor
The Auditor Generol is responsible for the stotutory oudil of the NRF in

occordonce with Arlicle 229 ot ihe Conslitution of Kenyo ond the Public

Audit Act 2015. No firm of Certified Public Accountonts wos nominoted by
ihe Audilor Generol to corry out the oudil of NRF for the yeor ended 30 June

2022 in occordonce io section 23 of the Public Audil Act, 2015 fhoi
empowers ihe Auditor Generol lo oppoint on ouditor to oudit on his beholf.

By Order of the Boord

Prof. Dlckson M. Andolo.
Chief Executlve Officer
Secretory lo lhe Boord
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12. Slolemenl of Dlrectors Responsibllily
Seclion 8l of the Public Finonce Monogement Act, 2012 ond (STl Act 2013/

require the Directors to prepore finonciol siotements in respect of Noiionol

reseorch Fund, which give o irue ond foir view of the stole of offoirs of the NRF

oi the end of the finonciol yeor/period ond the operoting resulls of ihe NRF for

thot period. The Directors ore olso required to ensure thot the NRF keeps proper

occounting records which disclose with reosonoble occurocy the finonciol

posilion of NRF. The Direciors ore olso responsible for sofeguording the ossets

of the Fund.

The Direciors ore responsible for the preporotion ond presentotion of the Fund's

finonciol stotements, which give o true ond foir view of the stole of offoin of the

Fund for ond os ot the end of the finonciol yeor ended on June 30, 2023. This

responsibility includes:

(i) Moinloining odequote finonciol monogement orrongements ond

ensuring thot these continue io be effeclive throughout the reporting

period.

(ii) Mointoining proper occounting records, which disclose wilh

reosonoble occurocy of ony time the finonciol posilion of lhe Fund

(iii) Designing, implementing ond mointoining inlernol controls relevont

to the preporotion ond foir presentotion of the finonciol stotements,

ond ensuring thoi they ore free from moteriol misstotements, whether

due to error or froud.

(iv) Sofeguording the ossets of the Fund.

(v) Selecting ond opplying oppropriote occounting policies.

(vi) Moking occouniing estimotes thot ore reosonoble in the

circumstonces.

The Directors occepi responsibility for the Fund's finonciol siotements, which

hove been prepored using oppropriote occounting policies supported by

reosonoble ond prudent judgements ond esiimoies, in conformity with
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lnternotionol Public Sector Accounting Stondords (IPSAS). ond in the monner

required by the PFM Ac|,2012 ond the Slote Corporotions Act) .The Directors

ore of the opinion thot ihe Fund's finonciol stotemenls give o true ond foir view

of the stote of Fund's tronsoctions during the finonciol yeor ended June 30, 2023,

ond of the Fund's finonciol position os of thoi dote. The Directors further confirms

the completeness of the occounting records mointoined for the Fund, which

hove been relied upon in the preporotion of ihe Fund's finonciol stolements os

well os the odequocy of the systems of inlernol finonciol control.

ln preporing the finonciol stotemenis, the Direclors hove ossessed the entity's

obility to continue os o going concern ond nothing hos come to the otleniion

of the Directors to indicote thol the Fund will not remoin o going concern for ot

leost ihe next twelve months from ihe dole of this stotemeni.

Approvol of the finonciol slolemenls

The Notionol Reseorch Fund's finonciol stotements were opproved by the Boord

on 2.4 oq 2023 ond signed on its beholf by

?&":
Prof. Dlckson M. Andolo

Accounllng Officer

ffiiffi

Prof. Rolemo Mlchleko, EBS

Cholrmon
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NATIONAL RESEARCH FUND FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that consider whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards, and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent, and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management, and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient, and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management, and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution and
the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together constitute
the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of National Research Fund set out
on pages 1 to 40, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Report ofthe Auditor-General on National Research Fund/or the year ended 30 June, 2023



30 June, 2023, statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets,
statement of cash flows, statement of comparison of budget anci actual amounts and a
summary of significant accounting policies, notes to the financial statements and other
important disclosures in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of lhe Constitution
of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 20'15. I have obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the National Research Fund as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the Public Finance
Management Acl, 2012 and the Science, Technology and lnnovation Act, 201 3.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the National Research Fund Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtairted is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Failure to Optimize Operations

Review ofthe budget and operations ofthe Fund over a period offour (4) years revealed
that transfers from other government entities declined by Kshs.1 ,515,871 ,748 or 82o/o

from an amount of Kshs.1,838,909,671 in the financial year 201812019 lo
Kshs.323,037,923 in the financial yeat 202212023.

ln the circumstances, the reduction in funding has affected the implementation of the
Fund's mandate which is critical for development in Kenya.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter

Long Outstanding Receivables

The statement of financial position reflects receivables balance of Kshs.1,714,726 as
disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements. lncluded in Kshs.1,714,726 is a balance
of Kshs.1,500,000 in respect of an amount borrowed by the State Department for

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nqtional Research Fundlor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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University Education which has been outstanding for more than two (2) financial years.
Management did not justify the lending nor provide evidence of efforts to recover the
amount advanced.

ln the circumstances the Fund is at risk of losing the amount borrowed if measures to
recover the money are not initiated and implemented.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN THE USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) oi the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that nothing has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements, plan, and perform the audit to obtain assurance about
whether the activities, financial transactions, and information reflected in the financial
statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern
them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
MANAGEMENTAND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of an Updated Fixed Assets Register

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.27,007,659 in respect of
property, plant and equipment as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements. The
inventory catalogue provided by the Fund Management indicated a listing of all movable
and immovable assets that the Fund had in its possession as at 17 May, 2021 . However,
the register provided did not indicate the serial numbers, thus making it difficult to trace
the assets as per assets register to the physical assets.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on fixed assets of the Fund
could not be confirmed.

Reporl ofthe Auditor-General on National Research Fundfor the year ended 30 June, 2023
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The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management, and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Trustees

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Fund's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Fund or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Trustees is responsible for overseeing Fund's financial reporting process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

Report of the Auditor-Generql on Nationol Reseorch Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about v,rhether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentifY and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue
to sustain its services.

Audilor-General on Notional Research Fund for the year ended 30 June, 2023
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a Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Fund to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA u, CBS
UD T R-GENERAL

Nairobi

27 March,2O24

a

a

Report of the Auditor-General on National Research Fundfor the year ended j0 June, 2023
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Notlonol Receorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonclol Stolemenls

\O'flRFl@ffiFor lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023

l4.Slolemenl of Flnonclol Performonce for the Yeor Ended 30 June 2023

The notes set out on poges 7 to 38 form on integrol port of lhese Finonciol
Stotements. The Finonciol Stotemenis set out on poges I to 6 were signed on
beholf of the Boord of Directors by:

fum*+h- f$tueobo-
Prof. Dlckson M. Andolo
Chlef Execulive Ofllcer

Dole
2o

CPA. Rosemory Odeph
Heod of Flnonce
ICPAK No. 7345

Prof. Rolemo Michleko, EBS

Cholrmon

f r.*[.** Dore[e!.l.AL]... e.9 a3Dole l,*i

1

Revenue Ftom Non-Exchonge Tronsocllons
6 323,037,923 323,037,923Tronsfers from olher governments entities

Revenue From Exchonge Ironsocllons
27,n8,159Other incomes Tlol 22,167,731

350,346,0823/t5,205,654Totol Revenue

Expenses
2,588,8388 | 4,17 6,109Personol Emoluments

I 73,229,648 63,770,6&Administrotion ond operoting cosl
l0 7,764,721 5,262,68Depreciotion ond omort2otion expenses

10,148,272Boord Expenses ll 10,696,929
12 229,460,513 301,9%,477Reseorch progroms gronls

335.327.9?1 383-708 955folol expenses

9_877.733 6336rLEZiUSurplus for lhe perlod

ftr)t-i
.i".t! j ):t\

1'ri1
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l3.Report of lhe lndependenl Audllor for lhe Flnonclol Slolemenls oI Nollonol

Reseorch Fund.
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Nollonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Report ond Flnonclol Stotements
For the yeor ended 30 June 2023 mrffi

Assels
Currenl Assels

7,987,832Cosh ond cosh equivolenis 13 27,940,746
1,642,928Receivobles 14 1,714,726

9,630,760Tolol Currenl Assels 29,655,472
Non-Currenl Assets

25,838.200Property, plont ond
Equipment

t5 27,007,659

0lntongible Asseis t6 9,3r 0,000
Totol Non- Currenl Assels 36.3I7,659 25,838,200
Tolol Assels 65,973,131 35,468,960

Llobllllles
Currenl llobllllles

0Defened lncome IB 20,496,535
8,987,832Poyobles t7 6,161 ,467

Iotol Cunenl Uobllities 26,658,002 8,987,832
8,987,832Totol Uobllilies 26,658,002

Net Assels 3e.srtr2l 2AA$J2A

36,358,862 26,481 ,128Accumuloted surplus
2,956,266 0Prior Yeor Adjustment t9

Tolol Net Assets 39.315.128 26.481.128
39.315,128 26.481.128Totol Nel Assets ond Lioblllties

lS.Slolemenl of Flnonclol Position os ol 30 June 2023

The Finonciol Slotements set out on poges I lo 38 were signed on beholf of
the rd of Trusiees by:

Prof. Dlckson M. Andolo
Chlef Executlve Offlcer

- -tusr+\ furMolg'hr..-
CPA. Rosemory Odeph

Heod of Finonce
ICPAK No.7345

Prof. Rolemo Mlchleko, EBS

Choirmon

!..* Dor"].QI].il.L]... ,.,...3.:1.'.*\.?3.

2
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Nollonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond flnonciol Slolemenls ffi \O'flRF

,rS",',
For the eor ended 30 June 2023

l6.Slolemenl of Chonges in Nel Assels for lhe Yeor Ended 30 June 2023

Kshs

91,O47,493Bolonce c/d ot lst July 2020

Surplus for 2020/2021 (3r,r20,383)

Bolonce c/d ol 30 June 2021 s9,927.110

(33,362,8/3)Surplus / Deficit for lhe Period os oi 30 June,2022
Adjuslment to Depreciolion Wrongly chorged in
2022

(Bs, r 0e)

Eolonce c/d ot 30 June 2022 26,481,128

surplus for the period os oi 30 June 2023 9.877,733

Bolonce c/d ot 30 June,2023 36158-861

3



Nolionol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Report ond Flnonciol Slolemenls
for lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023

,$\ffi
-{t H.

I\O'YRFfi--,

323,037,9236 323,037,923Tronsfer from other Government Enlities
22,167 ,731 27 ,308,159AIA (Mobilized Resources from Donors) 7

350,346,0823'15,205,654Tolol Receipls
Poymenls

I 14.176.109 2,588,838Personnel Emoluments
63,770.680Administroiion & Operoting cosi 9 73.229,648

lt 10,696,929 10,148,272Boord Expenses
12 229,460,513 301 ,938,477Reseorch progroms gronts

378,446,267327,563,200Tolol Poymenls
Chonges ln Worklng Copllol

l4 171,7981 133,6761Chonges in Receivobles
Chonges in Defened lncome l8 20,496,535 0

17 12,826,365]| 16,47 6,7171Chonges in Poyobles
l9 2,9s6.266Prior yeor Adjustment

20,554,638 (6,510,393)Nel Chonges ln Working Copllol
Nel Cosh flows from/(Used ln) operollng
ocllvllles 38,197,O92 (34,610,578)

Cosh flow from lnvesling oclivilies
(l 7,508,506)Purchose of property, plont, equipment l5 (7,604,1811

t6 ( 10,640,000) 0lnlongible Assets

Nel cosh flows ftom/ (used ln) lnvesllng oclivilies fl8,244,r81) 0 7,508,506)
Nel cosh flows used in linoncing ocllvilies
Nel lncreose/ (decreose) ln cosh ond cosh
equlvolenls 19,952,912 (s2,r r 9,084)
Cosh ond cosh equivolents ot I July 2022 l3 7,987,832 60,106,916

Cosh ond cosh equivolents ol 30 June 2023 2Z.9ALJ!6 7-982-832

ir,,,

l T.Slolemenl of Cosh Flows for lhe Yeor Ended 30 June 2023

The Finonciol Stotements set out on poges 1 to 38 were signed on beholf of
the Bo f Trustees by:

74MA&o.-'
Prof. Dlckson M. Andolo
Chief Exec ulive Officer

mory Odeph
Heod of tlnonce
ICPAK No. 7345

Prol. Rotemo Mlchleko, EBS

Choirmon

D.r....3:.\.1.?{.:.3 oor..tl.\r}-\.H..
4
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Notlonol Reseorch tund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonciol Slolemenls
For lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023

lS.Slotement of Comporlson of Budget ond Acluol Amounts for the Yeor Ended 30 June 2023

Expenses

Pe6onnel Emolumenfs

Depreclollon & omorllzolion
ex nses'

Totol expenditure ( Recunenl)

ffi \O'flRF,f .-,,

5

100%323,037,923 323.037,923 323,037,923
6

Tronsfers from other Governmenh
Enlilles

42,664,266 42,664,266 22.167 ,731 20,496,535
7oOlhel recelpls (AlA)"'

42,664,266 365.702.189 345 205 654 20.496.535323.037.923Totol lncome

14,176,109 r00%I 7, r80,000 (3,003.89r) | 4.17 6,1098

90,805,6s2 73,229,648 17,576,004 8t%9
102,997,060 (r2,r9r,408)Admlnlstrollon & Operotlng cosl

17 ,7 64,721]. 1005%(4.197,1371 7 ,7 64,721
t0

4,197,137

\o,696,929 469 ,670 96%1,407,599 rr.t66.599t1
9.759,OO0Boord Expenses

92%249,553,829 229,460,513 20.093,3 t 6193,r0r,853 56,451 ,966
t2Reseorch progroms gronh

30,374,268 ?2%365.702. r 89 335.327,921327,235.060 38.497.12?

I,877,7334,197,137(4,197,1371
Surplus/deficit



Nollonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonclol Stotemenls
For lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023

Budgel noles

1. Explonotion of moteriol vorionces (10 per cent over/under) IPSAS 24.14

The fund employed its own stoff during the finonciol yeor under review this coused o moteriol vorionce in the Personnel
Emoluments ond in the use of goods ond services.

o Underutilizotion wos due lo stoff being employed middle of the finonciol yeor

2. Explonotion of chonges between originol ond finol (IPSAS 24.29)

. The chonges in originol ond finol budgel were occosioned by opproved reollocolions from oreos of low spending
to oreos where we hod higher expenditure.

3. The totol octuoi on comporoble omounis in lhis stotemenl ond stotemenl of finonciol performonce omounts for oll
the expendiiure items do noi tie due to differences in occounting bosis. The budget is prepored ond implemented on o
cosh bosis, while the finonciol stotemenls ore prepored on on occruol bosis. The differences ore mojorly coused of
Accruols Poyments mode during the cunent finonciol yeor. The difference is shown under notes 90, l20 ond

ffiffi'
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Nolionol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Finonclol Stolemenls ffirxffi
For lhe eor ended 30 June 2023.

19. Noles lo lhe Finonclol Slolements

l. Generol lnformolion
NRF is esloblished by ond derives its outhority ond occouniobility from Science
Technology ond lnnovotion (ST&l) Act, 2013. NRF is wholly owned by the
Government of Kenyo ond is domiciled in Kenyo. NRF's principol octivily is ol
NACOSTI Building, Upper Kobele olong Woiyoki woy.

2. Slolement oI compllonce ond bosis of preporolion

The finonciol stolements hove been prepored on o historicol cost bosis except
for the meosuremenl ot revolued omounts of certoin items of properly, plont

ond equipment, morketoble securities ond finonciol instruments ot foir volue,
impoired ossets ot their estimoted recoveroble omounts ond octuoriolly
determined liobilities ot lheir present volue. The preporotion of finonciol
stoiements in conformity with lnternotionol Public Sector Accounting
Slondords (IPSAS) ollows the use of estimotes ond ossumptions. ll olso requires

monogement io exercise judgement in the process of opplying NRF's

occounting policies. The oreos involving o higher degree of judgement or

complexity, or where ossumptions ond estimoles ore significont to the
finonciol siotements disclosed in Note 5.

The finonciol stotemenis hove been prepored ond presenied in Kenyo

Shillings, which is the functionol ond reporting currency of the NRF.

The finonciol stolements hove been prepored in occordonce with the PFM

Act, the Siote Corporotions Act, ond lnlernotionol Public Seclor Accounting
Stondords (IPSAS). The occounting policies odopted hove been consistenily
opplied to oll the yeors presented.

3. Adoplion of New ond Revised Slondords
i. New ond omended stondords ond interpretotions in issue effective in

the yeor ended 30 June 2023.

7



Nollonol Reseorch tund
Annuol Reporl ond Finonclol Slolemenls
For lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023. mrffi
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IPSAS

Finonciol
lnstruments

IPSAS 42: Sociol
Benefits

4I: Appllcoble: I't Jonuory 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to estoblish principles for the
finonciol reporting of finonciol ossets ond liobilities ihot will

present relevont ond useful informotion to users of finonciol
stotements for their ossessment of the omounts, timing ond
uncertointy of on Entity's future cosh flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of finonciol stoiements wilh more
useful informotion ihon IPSAS 29, by:

' Applying o single clossificotion ond meosuremenf
model for finonciol ossets thot considers the
chorocleristics of the osset's cosh flows ond the
objeciive for which the osset is held;

. Applying o single forword-looking expected credii
loss model thot is opplicoble io oll finonciol
instruments subjeci lo impoirmeni testing; ond

. Applying on improved hedge occounting model
lhot broodens the hedging orrongements in scope
of the guidonce. The model develops o strong link

between on Eniity's risk monogemenl strolegies
ond the occounling treotment for instrumenis held
os porl of the risk monogement stroiegy.

IPSAS 41 the entily does not deol in finonciol instrumenls
therefore it does not opply to the fund

Applicoble: I't Jonuory 2023

The objective of this Stondord is to improve ihe relevonce,
foithful represenioliveness ond comporobility of the
informotion thol o reporting Entity provides in its finonciol
stotements obout sociol benefits. The informotion provided
should help users of ihe finonciol stotements ond generol-
purpose finoncioi reports ossess:

(o) The noture of such sociol benefits provided by the Entily.



Notlonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Finonciol Slolements W \O,,URF,f ,.,"
For the eor ended 30 June 2023.

Amendments
to Other IPSAS

resulling from
IPSAS 41 ,

Finonciol
lnstruments

Other
improvements
to IPSAS

(b) The key feotures of ihe operotion of those sociol benefit
schemes; ond

lThe impocl of such sociol benefits provided on the Entity's

finonciol performonce, finonciol position ond cosh flows.

Applicoble: l't Jonuory 2023:

o) Amendments to IPSAS 5. to updote the guidonce
reloted io the components of borrowing costs which
were inodvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l wos issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regording illustrotive

exomples on hedging ond credit risk which were
inodvertenlly omitted when IPSAS 41 wos issued.

c) Amendmenis to IPSAS 30, to updote the guidonce for
occounling for finonciol guoronteed controcts which
were inodvertenily omitted when IPSAS 4l wos issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to updole the guidonce on
clossifying finonciol instrumenls on initiol odoplion of
occruol bosis IPSAS which were inodvertently omiited
when IPSAS 4l wos issued.

It does noi opply 1o our entity .The entiiy does not deol
with finonciol hedging or credit risk from borrowing

Applicoble I't Jonuory 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Finonciol lnformotion obout the
Generol Government Secfor. Amendments to refer to
the lotest System of Notionol Accounts (SNA 2008).

o /PSAS 39: Employee Eenefits. Now deletes the term
composite sociol securiiy benefits os ii is no longer
defined in IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29; Flnonclol instrumenls: Recognition ond
Meosuremenl. Stondord no longer included in the 2023

IPSAS hondbook os it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l
which is opplicoble from lst Jonuory 2023.

lnitiol recognition ond meosuremenl Finonciol liobilities
within the scope of IPSAS 29 ore clossified os finonciol
liobilities ol foir volue through surplus or deficit or loons ond

9



Nollonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonclol Slotemenls
For lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023. m'ffi
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bonowings, os oppropriole. The Fund determines the
clossificotion of its finonciol liobilities ot iniliol recognition. All

finonciol liobilities ore recognised initiolly ot foir volue ond
directly ottributoble tronsoction costs.

4. Summory of slgnfflconl Accounling Pollcies
o. Revenue recognlllon
l) Revenue ftom non-exchonge tronsoctions

Fees, loxes ond fines
NRF does not recognize revenues from fees, toxes ond fines when the event
occurs ond the osset recognition criterio ore met. To the extent thot there is o
reloled condition ottoched lhot would give rise to o liobility to repoy the
omount, deferred income is recognized insteod of revenue. Other non-
exchonge revenues ore recognized when il is proboble thoi the fuiure
economic benefits or service potentiol ossocioted with ihe osset will flow to
NRF ond the foir volue of the osset con be meosured reliobly.

fronsfers from olher governmenl entilles
Revenues from non-exchonge tronsoctions with other government entities
ore meosured oi foir volue ond recognized on obtoining control of the osset
(cosh, goods, services ond property) if the tronsfer is free from conditions ond
it is proboble thot the economic benefits or service. Poienliol reloted to the
osset will flow to NRF ond con be meosured reliobly. Recunent gronis ore
recognized in the stolement of Finonciol Position

Comprehensive income. Development/copitol gronls ore recognized in the
stotemeni of finonciol position ond reolised in ihe stotement of
comprehensive income over the useful life of the ossets thot hos been
ocquired using such funds

b. Budgel lnformollon
The budget tor FY 2022-2023 wos opproved by ihe Notionol Assembly in June
2022. Subsequent revisions or odditionol oppropriotions were mode io the
opproved budget in occordonce wiih specific opprovols from the
opproprioie ouihorities.

10



Nolionol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonciol Slolemenls ffi \O/flRF
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tor the eor ended 30 June 2023.

Noles lo lhe Flnonciol Stolemenls (Contlnued)
Summory ol Slgnlficonl Accountlng Pollcles (Conlinued)

The oddilionol oppropriotions ore odded 1o lhe originol budget by NRF upon
receiving the respective opprovols in order lo conclude lhe finol budget.

NRF's budget is prepored on o differeni bosis to the octuol income ond
expenditure disclosed in the finonciol siotements. The finonciol stotemenis ore
prepored on on occruol bosis using o clossificotion bosed on the noture of
expenses in the stotement of finonciol performonce, whereos the budget ls

prepored on o cosh bosis. The omounts in the finonciol slotemenls were recost

from the occruol bosis to the cosh bosis ond reclossified by presentolion to be
on the some bosis os the opproved budget. A comporison of budgel ond
octuol omounts, prepored on o comporoble bosis to the opproved budget, is

then presented in the stoiement of comporison of budgel ond octuol
omounts.

ln oddition to the Bosis difference. odjustments to omounts in the finonciol
stotemenis ore olso mode for differences in lhe formots ond clossificotion
schemes odopted for the presentotion of lhe finonciol stotements ond the
opproved budget.

A stotement to reconcile the octuol omounts on o comporoble bosis included
in the stotement of comporison of budget ond octuol omounts os per lhe
stotement of finonciol performonce hos been presented under poge 6 of
these finonciol stotements.

c. Toxes

Current income tox
Cunent income tox ossets ond liobilities for the cunent period ore meosured ol
the omounl expected to be recovered from or poid to the toxotion outhorities.

The tox rotes ond tox lows used to compute the omount ore those thot ore

enocted or substontively enocted, ot the reporting dote in the oreo where NRF

does noi operole ond generoie toxoble income. Current income tox reloting

lo items recognized directly in net ossets is recognized in net

ossels ond not in the stotement of finonciol performonce. Monogement
periodicolly evoluotes posilions ioken in ihe tox returns with respect to

11
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Annuol Reporl ond Flnonciol Stolemenls
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Noles lo lhe Finonciol Slolemenls (Continued)
Summory of Signlficonl Accounllng Policies (Conlinued)

siiuotions in which opplicoble tox regulotions ore subject io inlerpretotion ond
esloblishes provisions where opplicoble

d. Properly, Plonl ond Equipmenl
All property, plont ond equipment ore stoted o1 cost less occumuloied
depreciotion ond impoirment losses. Cosl includes expenditure thot is directly
ottributoble to lhe ocquisition of the items. When significont porls of property,
plont ond equipment ore required to be reploced ot intervols, NRF recognizes

such ports os individuol ossets with specific useful lives ond depreciotes them
occordingly. Likewise, when o mojor inspection is performed, its cost is

recognized in ihe corrying omount of the plont ond equipmenl os o
replocement if the recognition criterio ore sotisfied. All other repoir ond
mointenonce costs ore recognized in surplus or deficit os incuned. where on
osset is ocquired in o non-exchonge tronsociion for nil or nominol
considerotion the ossei is initiolly meosured ot i1s foir volue.

The Notionol Reseorch Fund chorges depreciolion on its osseis on o stroight
line bosis. The rotes of deprecioiion on NRF's ossets is os follows:-

e. Leoses

Finonce leoses ore leoses thot lronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond benefits
incidentol 1o ownership of the leosed item to NRF. Assets held under o finonce
leose ore copitolized ot the commencement of the leose ot the foir volue of
the leosed properiy or, if lower, ot lhe present volue of the future minimum
leose poyments. NRF does not recognize the ossocioted leose liobility of the
inception of the leose. The liobility recognized is meosured os the present volue
of the future minimum leose poyments ot initiol recognition.

Motor vehicles 20%

Furniture ond fitlings
Computers 33.33%

12.5%Plont ond equipment
12.5%lntongible Assels

i:!r! ,i 'Japt ra)r!i!!!Ir:rrr
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Notionol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonclol Slolemenls
For the eor ended 30 June 2023.

Noles lo the Finonclol Slolemenls (Continued)
Summory of Signlflconl Accounling Policles (Contlnued)
Subsequenl to initiol recognition, leose poyments ore opportioned between
finonce chorges ond reduction of ihe leose liobility so os to ochieve o constonl
rote of interest on the remoining bolonce of the liobility. Finonce chorges ore

recognized os finonce cosls in surplus or deficit. An ossei held under o finonce
leose is deprecioled over the useful life of the osset. However, if lhere is no

reosonoble cerioinly thot NRF will obtoin ownership of lhe osset by the end of
the leose term, the ossel is deprecioted over the shorter of the esiimoted useful

life of the osset ond lhe leose ierm.

Operoting leoses ore leoses thot do nol tronsfer substontiolly oll the risks ond
benefiis incidentol to ownership of the leosed iiem lo NRF. Operoting leose

poyments ore recognized os on operoling expense in surplus or deficil on o
slroighl-line bosis over ihe leose term.

f. lnlonglble ossels
lntongible ossets ocquired seporotely ore initiolly recognized ot cost. The cost

of inlongible ossets ocquired in o non-exchonge ironsoction is their foir volue

ot fhe dote

of the exchonge. Following initiol recognition, intongible ossets ore corried ol
cost less ony occumuloted omortizotion ond occumuloted impoirment losses.

lnternolly generoted intongible ossets, excluding copitolized development
cosis, ore not copitolized ond expendiiure is reflected in surplus or deficit in lhe
period in which ihe expenditure is incurred.
The useful life of the intongible ossets is ossessed os either finite or indefinite.

g. Reseorch ond developmenl cosls
NRF expenses reseorch costs os incurred. Development costs on on
individuol project ore recognized os intongible ossets when NRF con
demonstrote:

i).The lechnicol feosibility of completing lhe osset so thot the osset will be
ovoiloble for use or sole

ii). lts iniention to complete ond its obility to use or sell lhe osset

iii). How the osset will generote future economic benefits or service

potentiol

Mlxffi
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Annuol Reporl ond Finonclol Slolemenls
For lhe yeor ended 30 June 2023. ffi'ffi
Noles lo lhe Flnonclol Slolemenls (Conllnued)
Summory of Significonl Accounling Pollcies (Continued)

iv).The ovoilobility of resources to complele the osset

v). The obility to meosure reliobly the expenditure during development.

Following initiol recognition of on osset, the osset is corried oi cosi less ony
occumuloted omortizotion ond occumuloted impoirment losses. Amortizolion
of the osset begins when developmenl is complete ond lhe osset is ovoiloble
for use. lt is omortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the
period of development, the osset is tested for impoirment onnuolly with ony
impoirment losses recognized immediotely in surplus or deficit.

h. Flnonciol lnslrumenls

o) Flnonciol ossels

lnlllol recoqnlllon ond meosurement

Finonciol ossets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Finonciol lnstruments: Recognition
ond Meosurement ore clossified os finonciol osseis ot foir volue through surplus

or deficit, loons ond receivobles, heldJo-moiurity investments or ovoilobleJor-
sole finonciol ossets, os oppropriote. NRF determines the clossificotion of ih
finonciol ossets ot iniliol recognition.
loons ond recelvobles

Loons ond receivobles ore non-derivotive finonciol ossets wiih fixed or
determinoble poyments thot ore nol quoted in on octive morkel. After initiol
meosurement, such finonciol ossets ore subsequently meosured of omorlized
cost using the effective interesl method, less impoirment. Amortized cosi is

colculoted by loking into occouni ony discount or premium on ocquisition ond
fees or costs thot ore on integrol port of the effective interest rote. Losses orising

from impoirmenl ore recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-lo-moturlty

Non-derivoiive finonciol ossets with fixed or determinoble poymenls ond fixed
moturities ore clossified os held io moturity when NRF hos the positive intenlion
ond obility to hold it to moturity. After initiol meosurement, held-to-moiurily
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investments ore meosured ot omorlized cost using the effeciive interest

melhod, less impokment. Amortized cost is colculoted by toking into occount
ony discount or premium on ocquisition ond fees or costs thot ore on integrol
port of the effeclive interest rote. The losses orising from impoirment ore
recognized in surplus or deficil.

lmpolrmenl of finonclol ossels

NRF ossesses o1 eoch reporting dote wheiher there is objeclive evidence thof
o finonciol ossel or on entity of finonciol ossets is impoired. A finonciol osset or

on entity of finonciol ossets is deemed to be impoired if, ond only if, there is

objective evidence of impoirment os o resull of one or more events ihot hos

occurred ofler the iniliol recognition of the osset (on incuned 'loss event') ond
thot loss event hos on impocl on the estimoted future cosh flows of the
finonciol osset or NRF of finonciol ossets thot con be reliobly estimoled.
Evidence of impoirmenl moy include the following indicotors:
i). The debtors or on entity of debtors ore experiencing significont finonciol

difficulty

ii). Defoult or delinquency in inlerest or principol poyments

iii). The probobilily thot debtors will enter bonkruptcy or other finonciol
reorgonizotion

iv).Observoble doto indicotes o meosuroble decreose in estimoted future

cosh flows (e.g. chonges in orreors or economic condiiions thot correlole
with defoults)

lnltlol recoonltlon ond meosulemenl
Finonciol liobilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 ore clossified os finonciol
liobilities of foir volue through surplus or deficit or loons ond borrowings, os

oppropriote. NRF determines the clossificotion of its finonciol liobilities ot initiol

recognition. All finonciol liobilities ore recognized

lniliolly oi foir volue ond, in the cose of loons ond borrowings, plus directly
ottributoble tronsoction cosls:
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i. lnvenlories

lnventory is meosured ot cost upon initiol recognition. To the extent thot
inventory wos received through non-exchonge tronsoctions (for no cost or for
o nominol cost), the cost of ihe inventory is its foir volue of ihe dote of
ocquisition. Costs incurred in bringing eoch product to its present locotion ond
conditions ore occounted for, os follows:

i). Row moteriols: purchose cost using the weighted overoge cost
method

ii). Finished goods ond work in progress: cost of direct moteriols ond
lobour ond o proportion of monufociuring overheods bosed on the
normol operoiing copocity, bui excluding bonowing costs

After initiol recognition, inventory is meosured of the lower of cost ond net
reolizoble volue. However, to the exlent ihol o closs of invenlory is distributed
or deployed of no chorge or for o nominol chorge, thot closs of inveniory is

meosured ot lhe lower of cost ond current replocement cost. Net reolizoble
volue is ihe estimoted selling price in the ordinory course of operoiions, less the
estimoted costs of completion ond the estimoted costs necessory to moke the
sole, exchonge, or distribuiion. lnvenlories ore recognized os on expense when
deployed for utilizotion or consumpiion in the ordinory course of operotions of
NRF.

j. Provlslons
Provisions ore recognized when NRF hos o present obligotion (legol or
constructive) os o resull of o post event, it is proboble thot on outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits or service potentiol will be required
to settle the obligotion ond o relioble estimote con be mode of the omount of
the obligotion. Where NRF expecis some or oll of o provision to be reimbursed,
for exomple, under on insuronce controct, the reimbursement is recognized os

o seporote osset only when the reimbursemenl is virtuolly cerloin. The expense
reloting to ony provision is presented in the stoiement of finonciol performonce
net of ony reimbursement.
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k. Conlingenl liobllllles
NRF does not recognize o contingent liobillty, but discloses detoils of ony
conlingencies in the notes to the finonciol stotements, unless the possibility of
on outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potentiol is

remote.

l. Conlingenl ossels

NRF does not recognize o contingent osset, but discloses detoils of o possible

osset whose existence is contingenl on the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncerloin future events not wholly wilhin the conlrol of NRF in ihe
notes 10 the finonciol stoiements. Contingent ossets ore ossessed continuolly
to ensure thot developmenis ore oppropriotely reflecled in the finonciol
stotements. lf ii hos become viriuolly certoin thot, on inflow of economic
benefits or service poientiol will orise ond lhe osset's volue con be meosured
reliobly, the osset ond the reloted revenue ore recognized ln the finonciol
stotements of the period in which ihe chonge occurs.

m. Nolure ond purpose of reserves
NRF creotes ond mointoins reserves in terms of specific requirements.

n. Chonges ln occounting policies ond eslimoles

NRF recognizes the effects of chonges in occounting policy retrospectively.
The effects of chonges in occounting policy ore opplied prospectively if
retrospective opplicotion is improcticol.

o. Employee beneffls

Rellremenl benefll olons

NRF Plons to provide retirement benefits for its employees ond directors.
Defined contribution plons ore post-employment benefit plons under which on
entity poys fixed contributions into o seporote entiiy (o fund). ond will hove no

legol or constructive obligotion to poy further contribulions if the fund does not

hold sufficient ossets to poy oll employee benefits reloiing to employee service
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ln the current ond prior periods. The contributions to fund obligotions for the
poyment of retirement benefits ore chorged ogoinst income in the yeor in
which ihey become poyoble. Defined benefit plons ore posi-employment
benefit plons other thon defined-contribution plons. The defined benefit funds

ore octuoriolly volued lri-onnuolly on lhe projecled unit credii method bosis.

Deficits identified ore recovered through lump sum poyments or increosed
future conhibutions on proportionol bosis to oll porticipoting employers. The

contributions ond lump sum poymenis reduce the postemployment benefit
obligotion.

p. Forelgn currency tronsoctions
Tronsoctions in foreign currencies ore initiolly occounted for of the ruling rote
of exchonge on the dote of lhe lronsoction. Trode creditors or debtors
denominoted in foreign currency ore reporled ot the slotement of finonciol
position reporting dote by opplying ihe exchonge rote on thot dote. Exchonge
differences orising from the setilement of crediiors, or from the reporling of
creditors ot rotes differenl from those oi which they were initiolly recorded
during the period. ore recognized os income or expenses in lhe period in which
they orise.

q. Reloled porlies
NRF regords o reloted porty os o person or on entity with the obility to exert
control individuolly or jointly, or to exercise significont influence over NRF, or
vice verso. Members of key monogement ore regorded os reloted porties ond
comprise the directors, the CEO ond senior monogers.

r. Servlce concesslon orrongemenls
NRF onolyses oll ospects of service concession orrongements thol it enlers inlo
in delermining the oppropriote occounting treoiment ond disclosure
requirements. ln porticulor, where o privote poriy coniributes on osset to the
onongemenl. NRF recognizes thot ossel when, ond only when, it conirols or
regulotes the services the operotor must provide together with the osset, to
whom il must provide them, ond ot whoi price. ln the cose of ossets other thon
'whole-of-life' ossets, i1 conlrols, through ownership. beneficiol entitlement or
olherwise - ony significont residuol interest in the osset of the end of the
orrongement. Any ossets so recognized ore meosured of iheir foir volue. To the
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exleni thot on ossel hos been recognized. NRF olso recognizes o
conesponding liobility, odjusted by o cosh considerotion poid or received.

s. Cosh ond cosh equlvolents
Cosh ond cosh equivolents comprise cosh on hond ond cosh ol bonk, short-

ierm deposits on coll ond highly liquid investments with on originol molurity of
three months or less, which ore reodily convertible to known omounts of cosh

ond ore subjecl 1o insignificonl risk of chonges in volue. Bonk occount
bolonces include omounts held oi the Centrol Bonk of Kenyo ond ot vorious

commerciol bonks oi the end of ihe finonciol yeor. For the purposes of these

finonciol stotements, cosh ond cosh equivolents olso include short-term cosh
imprests ond odvonces to outhorised public officers ond/or institutions, which
were not surrendered or occounied for ot the end of the finonciol yeor'

l. Comporolive figures
Where necessory comporolive figures for the previous finonciol yeor hove
been omended or reconfigured to conform to the required chonges in
presentotion.

u. Subsequenl evenls
There hove been no events subsequent to the finonciol yeor-end with o
significont impoct on the finonciol stoiements for the yeor ended June 20,

2023.

5. Significont Judgemenls ond Sources of Eslimotion Uncerlointy

The preporotion of NRF's finonciol slotemenls in conformity with IPSAS requires

monogemeni to moke judgments, estimotes ond ossumptions thot offect the

reported omounts of revenues. expenses, ossels ond liobilities, ond ihe
disclosure of conlingent liobilities, ot the end of the reporting period. However,

unceriointy obout ihese ossumptions ond estimotes could result in outcomes
lhol require o moteriol od.justmenl to the corrying omouni of the ossel or
liobility offected in future periods. Stote oll judgements, estimotes ond
ossumpiions mode:
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Eslimoles ond ossumplions

The key ossumptions concerning the future ond olher key sources of estimolion
uncertointy ol the reporting dote, thot hove o significont risk of cousing o
moleriol odjustment to the corrying omounls of ossets ond liobilities wiihin the
nexi finonciol yeor, ore described below. NRF bosed its ossumptions ond
estimoles on poromelers ovoiloble when the consolidoted finonciol
stoiements were prepored. However, existing circumstonces ond ossumplions
oboui fuiure developments moy chonge due to morket chonges or
circumstonces orising beyond the control of NRF. Such chonges ore reflected
in the ossumptions when lhey occur. IPSAS I .l 40

Uselul llves ond reslduol volues
The useful lives ond residuol volues of ossets ore ossessed using the following
indicotors lo inform potentiol future use ond volue from disposol:

o) The condition of the ossei bosed on the ossessment of experts
employed by NRF

b) The noture of the osset, its susceplibility ond odopiobility to
chonges in technology ond processes

c) The noture of the processes in which lhe osset is deployed
d) Avoilobility of funding lo reploce ihe osset

e) Chonges in the morket in relotion to the osset

Provlslons

Provisions were roised ond monogement determined on estimote bosed on
the informotion ovoiloble. Provisions ore meosured of the monogement's besi
estimote of the expenditure required.

To settle the obligotion of the reporting dote, ond ore discounted to present

volue where the effect is moteriol.
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6 Tronsfers from Olher Governmenl Entlties

We received the entire budget ollocoiion for the yeor

7) Other lncome

7.o) Olher lncome

Amounls honsfened to delerred income

80,759,48031/08/2022 26,919,826

80,759,48126,919,82702/9/2022
80.759,48105/o912022 26,919.827

BO,7 59,48180.7 59,481t8/12/2022
14/04/2022 80.759,481

80.7 59,48127 /0612023
323A37123TOTAI. 323A3Z-923

4,214,67 415/t 112022 Hepwek Project
(Fronce Government

09/o2/2023 Hepwek
Project (Fronce
Government)

r 6,806,609

IDRC PROPOSAL r8.988,5r 709/03/2023
302,87527 /Ot /2023 Africon Populotion

ond heolth Reseorch
363,1503\ 101/2023 Workshop funds

SGCI
4/11/2023 British Council 1.507,750

27,308,159ICIPE 480,69 r4/18/2023
22308J.5'anrL2aaTOTAI.

4,214,674Totol condiiion gronts received

2Z3@t521t2u_62,73J)Amounts utilized in performonce
2oa9n-'n5
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8) Personnel Emolumenls

9) Admlnlsholion & Operoling Cosl

4,812,021Bosic Solory

Commuier Allowonce l8r,30l
Housing Allowonce 1,242,457

46.86 228,096Acting Allowonce
987,000Entertoinmeni Allowonce

Cosuols 456, I 0',| 27 5,815
2,084.927Remuneroiive Allowonce 6,450,343
2188X38TOIAT 14-tZ6J0t

2u!2/2r2i
i/! t --- ,.::.:

!-! / _!,11

lnsuronce expenses 3,85r,598 654,607
27 6,51l.Utililies, supplies ond Services 355.574

|,382,237 r ,133,455Communicotion supplies ond services
1964913Domestic trovel 1,608,420

4,334,977 3,957,300Foreign irovel
1,204.508Printing, odvertising 1,067,909

2,294,7 | 6 1,603.20sTroining Expenses
Coterinq services 637,605 562,545
Office qenerol supolies 86,421 33.360

3,560,7 42 2,123,740Fuels, oils ond lubriconis
3,5r 0,000Controcted professionol

Controcted professionol poyoble 366.000
139.480Tronsport costs ond chorqes

Bonk choroes 239.42728O,378
109,450Uniform

Controcted technicol 2,660,WO
1,236.849Routine MTCE vehicles ond other ossets

Computer ond other reloted occessories \ ,529,111 270,200
Performonce controctino/Work plon 36,469,544 28,233,440
office reni 7,569,000 7,569,000
Audit fees r,000,000 r,000,000
Audit fees r,000,000
Cleoning services 1,266,190 878,400
Furniture ond other Equipmeni 34,500.00
Conferences s,900,726 3,044,290
TOTAT 73.229.647 63 770.680

! : t:J il:
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l0) Depreclotlon And Amorlizolion Expenses (See Note l5)

The fund's Depreciolion ond omortizotion expenses ore for the ossets held ol
Noiionol Reseorch Fund

I l) Boord Expenses

l2) Reseorch Gronls Progrom Costs

5,262,6686,434,721Property Plont & Equipmeni

lntongible Assels r,330,000

z-zuJJt7 52A2NABTolol

900.0001,044,000Choirmon/Directors' Honororio
9,248,2729.568,929Silting Allowonces

84,000Other Allowonces
m42z:l10616129Tolol

127 ,157 ,250DAAD
74,111,479Covid l9 ond locusi prog

r33.s83.753Kenyo Germony
4.s00,000KNAS

27,308,1s94,214,67 4HEPWEK
3,946,7N

48,944,526
MMC
Phd

I |,39t.00093,476,589Oiher Reseorch Gronts
I 12.000KEFRI

2,410,350
242,510

MMC Project Poyoble
Phd Poyoble

__30Lt3&42___znaaoslj3.TOTAL
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13) Cosh ond Cosh Equlvolenls

14. Receivobles fiom Non-Exchonge Progroms

The prepoid insuronce is for molor vehicles

o) Current occounl
Notionol Bonk of Kenyo 0 t060208597200 7 ,444,211 7 ,732,144

7,732,144Sub- lotol 7,444,211

b) Deposlls

2ss.688
Kenyo Commerciol
Bonk

r236065395 20,496,535

Sub- lolol 20,496,535 255,688

Grond lolol ruMI4L 2.9t7.g3it

;-aar)!;!
)brrlrnri'tr t.-.tt tci.-.tl it r tit u ti'-.t t t

Receivobles r,500,000 r,500,000

lnsuronce 214,726 142,928

Tolol Gronl Recelvobles \JJAJ2E. 1J,42.,28

i.;t t:
;'.=ali rlil=, '!u22/2)2'! !)1
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Nel Book Volue os ol
30lh June 2022

15. Properly, Plont ond Equipmenl

zir5t39 288206

Nole
The opening bolonce for the computers os ot lsr of July 2022 hos been fully

deprecioled per below toble

Kshs KshsKshs KshsKshs
12.5% 33.33%Role 20%

27,264,6290r,895,900 2,635,496As ol 1 July 2021 22.733,233
15,06t,706 r7,508,5052,0r4,800 432,000Additions 0

Disposol
15,06r ,705 44,773,1353,910,700 3,067,496As ot 30th )une 2022 22,733,233

44,773,135s,067,496 15,061,706Opening Bolonce os I

July,2022
22,733,233 3,910,700

1,673,523 7,604,1812,772,208 3,I 58,450Addiiions

Disposol

52.377.3166,225,946 16,735,229Totol Cosl/Voluollon 22,733,233 6,682,908

Depreclotlon &
lmpoirmenl

13,672,2672,552,10610,521,047 599,1l4I -Jul-21
5.262.6684,546,647 488,837Depreciolion 227,184

lmpoirment
Tronsfers

r8,934,935r,087,95r 2,779,29015,067,6941-Jul22
Depreciotion
lmpoirment
Tronsfer

6,434,7211 ,052,711 04,546,647 835.364Dep. ChorEe for lhe Yeor
25,369,6561,923,315 3.832.00130-Jun-23 019.614.341

1_hB5-1229 u-00Lt57!tz59l9:l 23r3-Zt5Nel Book Volue os ol
30lh June 2023

3.r_183r2

rn0ilz06 25-8382002-822.142
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3,067,496Fully Deprecioted Assets (Compulers)

2,779,290
Accumuloted Depreciotion for ihe
ossets
Bolonce 288,206

12.5%RATE 12.5%
INTANGIBTE ASSETS

cosT
At July I
Additions 10,640,000
Disposols

r0,640,000At June 30

AMORTISATION
At July I
Choroe for the veor r,330,000
lmpoirment Loss

Ai June 30 r,330,000

NET BOOK VATUE
At June 30 9,3r0,000

_!-_!1',1--!:

16. lnlongible Asset

lntongible Assels ore Amortized ot the yeor of ocquisition ot 12.5% on cost
ond hos on estimoted useful life of 8 yeors.

17. Poyobles

2,000,000Audit fees r.000,000

Reseorch Gronts 2,652,860

1,044,000Boord Expenses

ERP 3,990,000

3,290,972Poriilioning of offices 1,171.467

Tolol Gronl Poyobles 6,161,467 8,987,832
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18. Deferred lncome

ln reference to IPSAS 9 Subsection '19 the money received os AIA during lhe
finonciol yeor 2022/2023 were not fully utilized. The omount Kes 20,496,535 is

conditionol gront ond will be utilized in the next finonciol yeor. The committed
funds were from Britlsh Councll ond IDRC to which we hove controcluol
ogreement which will lopse in ihe finonciol yeor 2023/ 2024

'l 9.Prlor yeor odlustmenl
Anolysis of the certified works for lhe portitioning of the offices

Bolonce os of the beginning
42,664,266Amounts received

(22,167,731],
Amounts utilized in stotemenl of
performonce

20.496,s35
Deferred lncome bolonce os ol 30 June
2023

Cerllficote number Cerlilicqle Amount Relentlon

Cert I 5,332.1 40 533,214

Cerl 2 3,697,181 369,7 t8

Cert 3 7,705.907.50 770,5?0

Totol 1,673,522

Bolonce of poyobles on office porlition 12022)
Actuol releniions

Pold FY 2022/23
Adjuslmenl for lhe yeor

3,290,972
1.673.522
1,617,449

836.762
2-l512ld.

Reiention for the works poid to the controctor for ihe interim certificote
received of Kes. 1,673,522 wos not effected in the finonciol yeor 2021/2022.

Furlher o poyment of KES.836,762 wos mode.

FINANCIAT RISK MANAGEMENT

NRF's octivities expose it lo o voriety of finonciol risks including credit ond
liquidity risks ond effects of chonges in foreign currency. NRF's overoll risk

'r',
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monogement progromme focuses on unpredictobility of chonges in lhe
business environment ond seeks to minimise lhe potentiol odverse effect of
such risks on iis performonce by selting occeptoble levels of risk. NRF does not
hedge ony risks ond hos in ploce policies to ensure thot credit is only extended
to customers with on esloblished credit history.

NRF's finonciol risk monogemeni obiectives ond policies ore detoiled below:

(l) Credll rlsk

NRF hos exposure to credit risk, which is the risk ihol o counierporty will be
unoble to poy omounls in full when due. Credit risk orises from cosh ond cosh
equivolents, ond deposits with bonks, os well os trode ond other receivobles
ond ovoilobleJor-sole finonciol investments. Monogement ossesses the credit
quolity of eoch cusiomer, loking into occounl its finonciol position, post

experience ond other foctors. lndividuol risk limits ore sel bosed on internol or
externol ossessment in occordonce with limits

set by lhe direciors. The omounts presented in the stoiement of finonciol
posilion ore nel of ollowonces for doubtful receivobles, estimoted by NRF's

monogement bosed on prior experience ond their ossessment of the current
economic environment.

Flnonclol Risk Monogement

The corrying omount of finonciol ossets recorded in lhe finonciol stotements
representing NRF's moximum exposure to credit risk without toking occount of
the volue of ony colloterol obtoined is mode up os follows:
Furlher lhere is no credit risk disclosed in ihe stolement of finonciol position.

As ol 30 June 2021

Receivobles from exchonge tronsoctions 1.714.726 1,714,726

Eonk bolonces 27,940,746 27,940,746

29,655,472 2?,655,472Tolol
As ol 30 June 2022
Receivobles from exchonge tronsoclions 1.642.928 1.642.928

7tN7-832 z-9&Z-e?i2Bonk bolonce
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Further, there is no credil risk disclosed in the finonciol posilion.

Flnonclol Risk Monogemenl

The customers under the fully performing cotegory ore poying their debts os

they continue troding. The credit risk ossocioted with these receivobles is

minimol ond the ollowonce for uncollectible omounts thot NRF hos recognised
in the finonciol siotements ore considered odequote to cover ony potentiolly

irrecoveroble omounts. The boord of trustees sets NRF's credit policies ond

objectives ond loys down porometers within which the vorious ospects of

credit risk monogement ore operoted.

(li) tiquidlty risk monogemenl
Ultimote responsibility for liquidiiy risk monogemenl resls with NRF's directors,

who hove built on oppropriote liquidity risk monogement fromework for the

monogement of NRF's short, medium ond long-term funding ond liquidity

monogemenl requiremenls. NRF monoges liquidity risk ihrough continuous

monitoring of forecosts ond ocluol cosh flows. The toble below represents cosh

flows poyoble by NRF under non-derivotive finonciol liobilities by their

remoining controctuol moturities of the reporling dote. The omounts disclosed

in the toble ore ihe coniroctuol undiscounted cosh flows. Bolonces due within

l2 monlhs equol their corrying bolonces, os the impocl of discounting is not

significont.
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(lll) Morket rlsk

The boord hos pui in ploce on internol oudii function to ossist il in ossessing the
risk foced by NRF on on ongoing bosis, evoluote ond test the design ond
effectiveness of ils inlernol occounting ond operotionol controls.
Morkel risk is the risk orising from chonges in morket prices, such os interest rote,
equily prices ond foreign exchonge rotes which will offect NRF's income or the
volue of its holding of finonciol instruments. The oblective of morkel risk

monogement is to monoge ond control morket risk exposures within
occeptoble porometers, while optimising the reiurn. Overoll responsibility for
monoging morket risk rests with the Audit ond Risk Monogement Committee.
NRF's Finonce Deportment is responsible for the development of detoiled rhk

Ar ot 30 June 2023

Trode poyobles

ofCurrent portion
borrowings
Provisions

Deferred income

benefitEmployee
obligotion
Tolol

As ol 30 June 2022
Trode poyobles

ofCunent portion
bonowings
Provisions

Defened income

benefitEmployee
obligotion
Iolol

I

!-, t!):)!' ii;tl.a:)
'):::'-'::::::
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monogement policies (subject to review ond opprovol by Audit ond Risk

Monogement Commitiee) ond for the doy-to-doy
implemenlotion of those policies. There hos been no chonge to NRF's exposure

to morket risks or the monner in which it monoges ond meosures the risk.

o) Forelgn currency rlsk

NRF hos tronsoctionol curency exposures. Such exposure orises through
purchoses of goods ond services thot ore done in cunencies other thon the
locol cunency. lnvoices denominoted in foreign currencies ore poid ofter 30

doys from the dote of the invoice ond conversion ot the time of poyment is

done using lhe prevoiling exchonge rote. NRF monoges toreign exchonge risk

from future commdrciol tronsoctions ond recognised ossets ond liobilities by
proiecting for expected soles proceeds ond motching the some with
expected poyments.

Flnonclol Rlsk Monogemenl

The corrying omount of NRF's foreign cunency denominoted monetory ossets

ond monelory liobilities ot the end of the reporting period ore os follows:

H \O'flRF
,S",'.

Al 30 June 2022

Flnonclol ossels

lnvestments
Cosh
Debtors
folol flnonclol ossels
Flnonclol Llobllllles
Trode ond other poyobles
Borrowings
Iolol llnonclol llobllltles
Nel lorelgn currency
osset/(lloblllty)
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17. Reloled Porly Dlsclosures
Nolure Of Reloled Porly Relollonshlps
Entities ond other porties reloted to NRF include those porties who hove obility
1o exercise control or exercise significont influence over iis operoting ond
finonciol decisions. Reloted porties include monogement personnel, their

ossociotes ond close fomily members.

Governmenl of Kenvo
The Government of Kenyo is the principol shoreholder of NRF, holding 100% of
NRF's equity interest. The Government of Kenyo hos provided full guoronlees
to oll long-term lenders of NRF. both domeslic ond externol.
Olher reloled porlles lnclude:

The Notionol Government;
The Porent Minislry;

Kenyo Revenue Authorily
Stote Deportment for University Educolion ond Reseorch
Key monogement;
Boord of Trustees;

Currency
The finonciol stotemenis ore presenled in Kenyo Shillings (Kshs).

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

Tronsocllons wllh reloted porlles
Gronts from Notionol Government 323,037,923 323.037,923

Tolol 323,037,923 323,037,923

o) Key monogemenl compensotlon
Boord expenses 10,6?6,929 10,148,272

Totol 333.234152 333J86-r95
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20. Appendlces

l. Progress on follow up of Audllor recommendollons

The oudil of the octivities of NRF for the FY 2021/2022 wos conducted and the issues roised progress ore os follows.

Long Outstonding
Receivobles
The stotement of
finonciol position

reflects receivobles
from non-
exchonge
ironsoctions
bolonce of

The money lent to
SDUE of
ksh.1,500,000 hos

not been refunded
but o leiter hos

been roised
through PS to
request for ihe
refund.
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Kshs.l ,642,928 os

disclosed in Note
l2 to the finonciol
stotements. The

bolonce includes
on omount of
Kshs.1,500.000 thot
hos been
ouistonding for
more lhon one
yeor. The omount
wos bonowed by
the Stote
Deportment of
University
Educotion os per
REF MOE/11/1(246)
ond wos to be
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refunded.
However, the
omount continues
fo remoin
outstonding
despiie
Monogemeni's
follow-up for refund
thoi is yet to be
octed upon by the
Stote Deportmeni.

Resolved

For lhe Finonciol
yeor 2022/23 NRF

hos employed l3
sloff.
Currenlly we ore
prioritizing on the

Foilure to Optimize
Operotions
The Fund wos

estoblished under
Section 32 of the
Science
Technology ond

2
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lnnovotion (ST&l)

Act of 2013 which
become
operoiionol on 9

November 2015.

The ob.jective of
the Fund is to
focilitote reseorch
for the
odvoncement of
Science,
Technology, ond
lnnovoiion. The Act
stipulotes thot ihe
Fund should consist
of o sum of money
omounting to 2% of
the country's Gross

i BETA Agendo 1o
, increose gronts.

36



Nollonol Reseorch Fund
Annuol Reporl ond Flnonclol Stolements ffirffiFor the yeor ended 30 June 2023.

Domestic Produci,
provided by The

Notionol Treosury

every finonciol
yeor ond such
olher monies
designoted for the
Fund by Porlioment
, donolions ,

endowment or
gronts or gitls

designoted for the
Fund.

Review of the
budget ond
operotions of the
Fund over o
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period of four (4)
yeors reveoled
thot tronsfers
from other
governmenl
eniities hove
continued to
decline from on
omount of
Kshs.l .838,909.67
I in the finonciol
yeor 2018120l'9 to
Kshs.323,037,923
in the finonciol
yeor 2021 /2022 .

Further, the Fund
hos been
operoting with
skeleton stoff
rendering service
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delivery ditficult.
Reduction in
funding hos
offected the
implementotion
of lhe Fund's
mondoie which is

criticol for
development in
Kenyo.

Guidonce Nofes:

(i) Use the some reference numbers os contoined in the externol oudit reporl;

a

a
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ii) Obtoin the "lssue/Observotion" ond "monogemenl comments",
required obove, from finol externol oudit report thot is signed by
Monogement;

(iii) Before opproving the reporl, discuss the timefrome with the oppointed
Focol Point persons within your enlity responsible for implementotion of
eoch issue;

(iv) lndicote the stotus of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the dote of
submitting this report to the Notionol Treosury.

Prof. Dickson M. Andala

Chief Executive OIIicer

Dole As *\a3
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lll: lnler- Enllty Tronsfers

ENTITY NArriE:

Breok down ol fronsfers from lhe Slole Deporlmenl for Unlver3lty

Educolion & Reseorch

Dole Amounl (Kshs)

31/O8t2022 26,919,826

o2l9/2022 26,919,827

oslog/2022 26,919,827

18112/2022 N,759,481
14/04/2023 80,759,481

27 /06/2023 &,759,81
TOIAI. 323,037,923

The obove omounts hove been communicoted to ond reconciled with the
porent Ministry.

*
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